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Corporate Profile

RAEEIT

China Fortune Holdings Limited (“China Fortune” or the “Group”),
formerly named Fortune Telecom Holdings Limited, mainly
sells and distributes mobile phones and digital products in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group was
established in Hong Kong in 1992. It was first listed on the GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
code: 8040) on 16th February, 2000, and then successfully
shifted to the Main Board (Stock code: 110) on 26th January,
2004. The Group has a strong shareholder background and well
operational and professional management team.

The Group owns a retail chain in Zhuhai, the PRC for selling
mobile phones and telecommunication equipments.

In 2009, the Group acquired a Strontium mining site in the PRC,
as its first step in entering the natural resource industry.

The corporate culture of the Group rests on the integration of
the West and the East, modern and traditional management
philosophy, with an aim to build up a “Continuous Learning
Enterprise”. The corporate spirit of China Fortune focuses on
“Human Enterprise”. Under the leadership of its aspiring and
energetic management, China Fortune’s staff will team up
and move towards the Group’s goal of ranking as one of the
largest and best wireless communication and data products and

services providers in the region.

Subsidiary:
Mobile Phone Retail Chain
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Business Structure
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Corporate Milestones
TEERE

218 The former trading arm of the Group — Express Fortune Limited (“EFL”) was founded by
Mr. Lau Siu Ying and his brothers in Hong Kong.
ZNEEEREABREBRVUREARAA ([RE]) —AKEA S 28 HiESE -

1992-94

EFL became one of Nokia's earliest authorised distributors in the PRC.
REKARETREFBHEEREGZ —-

Commenced Fortune Telecom Group’s franchise retail business in the PRC.

RABEHRREECEEECEERTERXK-

AHA

Listed on the GEM Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code: 8040).
REBBERZPTAIZNR 1 (AR 5% - 8040) -

N
o

A US$12 million syndicated loan was successfully arranged.
BT %2 HF — 812,000,000 7T 2 $RE & 5K

Completed the acquisition of 51% shareholdings of Synergy Pacific (Holding) Limited
(“Synergy Pacific”).
TRMBERESEL (ER)BRAR (REEH]) 251%K#E -

Fortune Shanghai was acknowledged by Shanghai Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone Management
Committee as one of the best enterprises for commodity sales.

RELBELBISRAVEEEZEEEANAHEREELEEZ —

A HK$160 million syndicated loan was successfully arranged.
B Zh % HE — 160,000,000/ 7T 2 SR B E 3K »

The Group has achieved a record annual sale of 2.1 million sets of mobile phones and a record
net profit over HK$60 million.
255 B &I T 4F 852,100,000 4 # 8 E % 18 860,000,000 7T 4% F &Y 42 8% °

For a consecutive year, Fortune Shanghai was again acknowledged by Shanghai
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone Management Committee as one of the best enterprises for
commodity sales.

BEEE_F REDSEEE BN SRRANREEZEEEAEMHERERLEZ—
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Corporate Milestones

TXRER

Listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code: 110).
REBBRZFER LT (RGARE:110) -

A US$16 million syndicated loan was successfully arranged.
B2 %2 HE —7816,000,0003% 7T < $RE & 5K

Fortune Shanghai increased its share capital from US$6 million to US$25 million.
iR 8 % H AR 748 556,000,000 7T 38 11 225,000,000 7T ©

Successfully completed the acquisition of 100% shareholdings of Synergy Technologies
(Asia) Limited, and the disposal of 46% shareholdings of Synergy Pacific.

A% 3 5 Ak U B8 Synergy Technologies (Asia) Limited < 100% M #E & & & i 5545 < 46% %
-

Newly obtained the nationwide distributorship of Samsung mobile phones.
MG =EBHEFEITHDHE-

Successfully obtained the Fulfillment Distributorship for all Nokia Stores in the PRC.
RINBGEHBMARE T EEE R EAEENHE-

Contracted to acquire 51% stake in Zhuhai Reminda Telecom Equipment Company Limited
(BT EREBAREARLQA) and completed the acquisition in October 2007.
RIABBIRETERERAMRBERRAFN Z51%RE YR —_ZETLF + Al s -

Formed a joint venture with TeleChoice International Limited for the Nokia fulfillment
business.
Ed TeleChoice International Limitedp 2 —Hl& & AR H B AR BB £ o

Name changed to China Fortune Holdings Limited.
EERPEREERERAF -

Completed the acquisition of 50.8% interest in Sifa Mining which has the right to
conduct mining activities in a Celestite (Strontium), Zinc and Lead mining site situated in
the Hubei Province, the PRC.

BRI BB RN BRI E —ERE A (88) - 8 RESHRISE I TERIR)E 2 A0 SR 2548 2 $£50.8%
P o
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

IEREFENTE

Dear shareholders,

REVIEW

2015 continued to be a year full of difficulties and challenges.
Although there was growth in the mobile phone market, the
competition in the mobile phone retail market was very keen
and the Group’s performance in this area had been affected.
Customer’s focus is expected to gradually shift from the
functionality of mobile phone to the shopping experience and,
in this regard, the large mobile telecommunication chain stores
have advantages.

In order to diversify the business of the Group, we have been
actively looking for opportunities which will further enhance
the shareholders’ value. Since we have been in the related
mobile phone industry for decades, and the potential for mobile
phone related business development is surely enormous and
sustainable, mobile phone operating system and mobile internet
are the major key business areas the Group is interested in.

SRR -
(=l 8
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In March 2013, we have acquired 6.25% (at that time) equity
interest in Jolla Limited which is a Finland company specialised
in mobile phone operating system development. Its coming
innovative and brand new mobile phone operating system can
surely bring new impact to the market.

For our mining business, the downturn in demand for minerals
and cyclic fluctuations in the industry have dramatically and
adversely affected our construction plan while we are in the mid-
way in developing a new mining site exploitation system. The
road ahead for our mining business won’t be straight and easy,
but full of obstacles and uncertainties. We will certainly stay the
course and solve all the problems encountered.

OPPORTUNITIES AND CHALLENGES

The world becomes even more and more challenging nowadays,
so as the mobile phone industry in the PRC. The PRC is one
of the strongest countries in terms of economic performance,
and with its huge internal consumption and room for expansion.
Though with keen competition, development potential is still
enormous. The Group will continue to strengthen our existing
relationship with the leading manufacturer to look for further
cooperation opportunities.

With a view to diversify the business of the Group, the Group is
actively looking for opportunities which will further enhance the
shareholders’ value.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | wish to sincerely thank our employees and business
partners for their continued dedication and commitment to
the Group, and | would like to express my appreciation to
our financial institutions, shareholders and investors for their
continuing supports and trust towards the Group.

Lau Siu Ying
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30th March, 2016
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Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEER WD

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Financial Review

Our turnover in mobile phone business increased in the
year, leading to a reduced loss of HK$8.1 million incurred in
this business segment, as compared to a segment loss of
HK$9.5 million in last year. For our mining business which the
exploitation on the first phase was completed in 2010 and
development of a new mining site exploitation system in the next
phase commenced since then, exploitation of minerals is now
halted.

The Group recorded an increase in the consolidated revenue
from HK$57.6 million in last year to HK$157.9 million in this year.
The gross profit amounted to HK$5.4 million, a decrease when
compared to the last year of HK$8.6 million. The gross margin
percentage during the year was 3.4% which was lower than the
last year of 14.9% due to the lower gross margin achieved in
the mobile phone trading business in this year. The other income
in this year included interest income amounted to HK$1.0
million. The other gains and losses in the year consisted a one-
off impairment loss recognised in respect of available-for-sale
investments amounted to HK$6.2million and an impairment loss
recognised in respect of trade and other receivables amounted
to HK$2.8 million.

The selling and distribution costs amounted to HK$6.6 million
which decreased as compared to HK$10.4 million of last year. It
was mainly because the staff costs decreased during this year.
The administrative expenses amounted to HK$18.2 million, a
decrease when compared to the last year of HK$30.0 million
mainly due to decrease in staff cost in the year.

=] & K Bl =

BB EE

REEBRHEEXEB2EEBRNFRARA B
B FE 75 0 S0 E A B 18R 2> 2£8,100,000/8 7T
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As far as the mobile phone retail chain and wholesale business
in Zhuhai was concerned, the revenue achieved during the
year amounted to HK$21.7 million, decreased by 48.7% as
compared with last year of HK$42.3 million. Owing to the fierce
competitive business environment this retail chain facing, the
Group continued to share a loss from it during the year. As the
performance of the associates was unpromising so far since
these associates were invested by the Group, the Group shared
net losses of HK$2.0 million from the results of the associates
during the year as compared to the net loss of HK$1.4 million in
last year.

The finance costs kept at same level at HK$1.3 million this year
when compared to last year.

The net asset value of the Group attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31st December, 2015 amounted to HK$165.4
million or HK$0.2 per share when compared to HK$195.9 million
or HK$0.24 per share as at 31st December, 2014. The basic
loss per share was 2.78 Hong Kong cents as compared to the
basic loss per share of 2.96 Hong Kong cents in last year.

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group’s aggregate other
borrowings amounted to HK$14.8 million when compared
to HK$15.5 million as at 31st December, 2014, which was
maintained at a similar level.

The gearing ratio of the Group, defined as the ratio of the total
long term liabilities to the shareholder’s equity, was 0.48 and
0.34 as at 31st December, 2015 and 2014 respectively.

BEEER WD
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The total cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$12.9
million as at 31st December, 2015 without any deposit pledged
to banks. The Group is financed by a combination of its equity
capital, cash flow generated from its operation and other
borrowings. During the year, there was no material change in the
funding and treasury policy of the Group. The Group considers
there is no material potential currency exposure as the majority
of its revenue and expenses are derived and incurred all in
Renminbi in the PRC. It is the treasury policy of the Group to
manage its foreign currency exposure whenever its financial
impact is material to the Group.

The inventories of the Group as at 31st December, 2015
amounted to HK$2.0 million, when compared to HK$6.5 million
as at 31st December, 2014, mainly since less inventories
was kept as driven by stringent inventory control in the year.
The inventory turnover period was 17 days in this year when
compared to 46 days of last year. The Group will continue to
apply strict policy in inventory control in the future.

The amount of trade and other receivables as at 31st December,
2015 was HK$43.3 million, when compared to HK$14.9 million
as at 31st December, 2014. In order to minimise the credit risk
for the trade receivables, the Group has implemented strict
control on the determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts.

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group had in total 89
employees as compared to 140 employees as at 31st
December, 2014. Employees were remunerated according to
the nature of their job duties and market trend. The Group
provided staff welfare and fund contribution to its employees in
accordance with the prevailing regulations in the PRC and Hong
Kong. There was no material change in the remuneration policy,
bonus scheme and share option scheme during the year. The
Group has a share option scheme under which the Company
may grant share options to the participants, including directors
and employees, to subscribe for shares of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Market Overview

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the People’s Republic of China
(“MII”), there were more than 1.3 billion subscribers to mobile
phone services in the PRC as at the end 2015. While there are
continuing intense competitions among the major mobile phone
manufacturers in the PRC, they are trying to cut the distribution
layers by directly supplying to the provincial distributors and
leading retailers with a view to increase their profitability.
Because of this, leading vendors have developed multi-channel
distribution models which include “national distribution”,

“provincial distribution”, “direct to retail” and “direct to operator”.
On the other hand, mobile carriers are key participants in the
mobile phone industry chain. The restructuring of mobile carriers
in 2009 and the issuance of 3G licenses have led to more
intense competition among the mobile carriers. By cooperating
with retailers, especially large mobile telecommunication chain
stores, the mobile carriers can benefit from the retailers’ in-depth
understanding of customer behaviors and spending preferences.
Through such cooperation, the customers will experience more
professional, convenient and integrated customer services.
Thus, large mobile telecommunications chain stores are
expected to become the main sales channel for the mobile
carriers for their bundled mobile phones.

Business Review
Mobile Phone Business

The Group was involved in the business of trading, wholesale
and retail of mobile phones and telecom equipments in China.
Although there was growth in the mobile phone market, the
competition in the mobile phone retail market was very keen and
the Group’s performance in this area had been affected.

EEER WD
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BEEER WD

Customers focus is expected to gradually shift from the
functionality of mobile phone to the shopping experience.
Customers will normally require services such as function
presentations, digital phone books synchronization and pre-
installing software, etc, in purchasing a mobile phone. In the
3G & 4G era, the convergence of mobile telecommunications
and the Internet also led to rapid development of value-added
business which requires the retail channels to advance from
a pure sales platform to an integrated service platform. In this
regard, the large mobile telecommunication chain stores have
advantages.

Mining

We commenced developing a new mining site exploitation
system in our Strontium mining site since 2010. After the
expiration of a 5-year mining exploitation permit on 25th
September, 2012, Sifa Mining obtained a renewed mining
operating permit for 2 years (the “2-year Permit 2012-2014")
from the Ministry of Land and Resources of the PRC (F 2
ARKEMERL+ERES) (“MLR”), under which Sifa Mining
was allowed to carry out exploration activities only, but not
exploitation activities. The 2-year Permit 2012-2014 was expired
on 25th September, 2014.

During the year 2014, the Group prepared documents as
required and submitted the application to MLR to obtain a
mining exploitation permit. In return, a renewed permit was
granted by MLR on 27th April, 2015 for a term of 2 years from
25th September, 2014 to 25th September, 2016 (the “2-year
Permit 2014-2016"). The terms and conditions of the 2-year
Permit 2014-2016 are the same as the 2-year Permit 2012-
2014, no exploitation activities were allowed but only exploration
activities.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Group is still probable
in obtaining the mining exploitation permit in the next renewal.
Nevertheless, the Directors are also exploring all commercially
viable opportunities to maximise the return from this investment,
including finding potential buyers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Directors have carefully reviewed the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit of the mining business (the
“‘CGU”") to which the mining right is allocated. The Directors
determined the recoverable amount of the CGU was not able
to be measured by a fair value less cost of disposal using the
market approach method as no sufficient and reliable market
information can be obtained. In 2014, the recoverable amount
of the CGU was determined by the value in use calculation.
Since the management has changed their intentions by also
considering the possible disposal of the CGU in current year,
the recoverable amount of the CGU was then determined by
a fair value less cost of disposal as at 31st December, 2015
using the income approach method. The recoverable amount
of the CGU was classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.
The key assumptions adopted in the income approach method
(2014: value in use calculation) relate to the renewal of a mining
exploitation permit, estimated reserves, estimated productivity
and the estimated prices of mineral resources. The calculation
uses cash flow projections with certain key parameters as
below:

BRER X (F1R)
BRI (FiA)

Discount rate (post-tax)
Discount rate (pre-tax)

Growth rate # &
Gross profit ratio E A=

Based on the above review, the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit of the mining business approximates to
its carrying value as at 31st December, 2015. The Directors
considered that no impairment loss has to be recognised for the
year.
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Prospects and Outlook HEREEL

The continued economic growth in the PRC is fuelled by a high FERAANEM S AP LB RFELRE S -
internal consumption. As the world’s biggest handset market, EREEARHEFEMIG TRBEHEE
there were more than 1.3 billion handset subscribers in the PRC AP ABEBISEA ZZT—RFEBMAY
with an increase of around 19.6 million subscribers in 2015. 19,600,000 AP - AP B 8+ 529% /4G
There was over 29% of 4G users out of the total subscribers, AP BFERBR AR KE—FRIBIER-
and forecasted to increase much further in the near future. On S—FHE BHEELHABFEAHSCDBA
the other hand, there were more than 700 million mobile Internet 700,000,000 A - R BB EEEAERNREZE)
users which implies that there are huge business opportunities in EEmSEEMERN AR AEBEREEEEZD
both mobile application and mobile commerce. Since the Group BRETEHSTH POEERERGRBDE

has been in the related mobile phone industry for decades, GELEBAAREERERRBRCEBEN A&
mobile phone operating system and mobile internet would be EEFEGYEeE -—TRARREE HME
surely the key business areas that the Group is interested in. 1 o

The Group is actively looking for further opportunities which will
further enhance the shareholders’ value.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EERENREEASEN

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Siu Ying, aged 52, is the founder, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 1992. Mr. Lau
has extensive working experiences in the telecommunications
industry for over 25 years and has established solid business
contacts in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lau is responsible
for directing the Group’s overall business policy and strategies
as well as overseeing the Group’s business development in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior to setting up his business, Mr.
Lau worked for Hutchison Whampao Group for approximately
5 years, in charge of the business development of the
telecommunications in the PRC. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a Master of Science degree in Information
Technology from the National University of Ireland, Dublin.

Mr. Lau is currently the trustee in New Asia College of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and the Board Councilor of
China Mobile Communications Association. In the aspects of
social and economic activities, Mr. Lau is devoted to promoting
economic and educational development. He served as the vice
president of the Hong Kong Association of Jieyang, the honorary
president of Shanghai Chaoshan Chamber of Commerce,
Hong Kong and Macau Director of the Dongguan City Youth
Federation and the vice president of Hong Kong Island Chaoren
Association Limited.

Mr. LUO Xi Zhi, aged 58, joined the Group in October 1995
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in
September 2002. Mr. Luo is also the Financial Controller of the
Group’s PRC operation. Mr. Luo holds a certificate in Accounting
from the Finance Academy of Jiangxi Province. Mr. Luo has
over 20 years of financial and accounting experience in the
PRC. Prior to joining the Group in 1995, Mr. Luo was the chief
accountant for Zhaoging Sz Di Telecom Co., Ltd.
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EENSREERAEGEN

Mr. WANG Yu, aged 50, joined the Group in April 2006 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in November
2009. Mr. Wang is the General Manager of a subsidiary of the
Company and in-charge of the mining business segment of the
Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong University
with a master degree and a bachelor degree in Computer
Science. Mr. Wang has more than 10 years working experiences
in channel and distribution management on computer products
and mobile phones with local and multinational companies in
the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang was a General
Manager of a listed company in the PRC focusing on IT
business.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHANG Wing Seng, Victor, aged 78, last held the position
of Managing Director of APCG Business Pte. Limited. Prior
to this, Mr. Chang was the Managing Director of Singapore
Technologies Telecommunications (Beijing) Pte. Ltd. based
in Beijing for 2 years. Mr. Chang had held various senior
management positions over 25 years with the Singapore
Technologies Group, mainly as the Director of Finance. Mr.
Chang was a graduate in Accounting from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology, Melbourne, Australia and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in Australia. Mr. Chang had also
completed the Program for Management Development at the
Harvard University Graduate School of Business Administration.
Mr. Chang was a certified public accountant in both Singapore
and Australia. Mr. Chang was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in October 1999.

Mr. WONG Lit Chor, Alexis, aged 57, graduated from the
University of Toronto, Canada in 1981 with a bachelor degree
in Arts majoring in economics and commerce and has obtained
a master degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1987. Mr. Wong has over 30 years
of banking, investment, corporate finance and securities dealing
experience gained from working as a senior executive in a
number of listed local and PRC financial services companies. Mr.
Wong is also an independent non-executive director of two other
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong. Mr. Wong was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2006.
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EENSREERAESGEN

Dr. LAW Chun Kwan, aged 50, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in June
2012. Dr. Law has extensive working experience in various
business fields including advertising, telecommunications,
information technology and real estate development in both
Hong Kong and the PRC. Dr. Law is presently engaged in
real estate development business in the PRC. Dr. Law holds a
bachelor degree of social science from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, a master degree of e-business and a doctorate
degree of business administration in information systems from
the Edith Cowan University, Western Australia.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. FOK Wai Ming, Eddie, aged 48, was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company in January 2014. Mr. Fok
is also the Financial Controller of the Group and the authorised
representative of the Company. He graduated from the University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree of Science in Engineering
and the University of Wolverhampton with a bachelor degree in
laws and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fok has years
of financial and audit experiences in Hong Kong.

BREEL 505 RS —FNABEEA
RRRZBUNTES -BIELTHRPEZE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure to protect the interests
of all shareholders. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on the principles and code provisions
(“Code Provisions”) set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

During the year ended 31st December, 2015, the Company
has complied with most of the Code Provisions of the CG
Code, except for the deviations as stated in paragraph headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” and “Re-election of
Directors”.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure
the business activities and decision making processes are
regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by Directors of the Company during the year under
review.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, each of whom
has confirmed that he has complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31st December,
2015. The Model Code also applies to other specified senior
management of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall accountability

Members of the Board are individually and collectively
accountable to the shareholders for the success and sustainable
development of the Company. The Board provides direction
and approval in relation to matters concerning the Company’s
business strategies, policies and plans whilst the day-to-
day business operations are delegated to the executive
management. The Board is accountable to the shareholders
and in discharging its corporate accountability, every Director of
the Company is required to pursue excellence in the interests
of the shareholders and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying
the required level of skills, care and diligence to a standard in
accordance with the statutory requirements.

Board composition

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors of whom all are
independent as defined under the Listing Rules. Independent
Non-executive Directors constitute more than one-third of the
Board. The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers that all Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent. To the best knowledge
of the Company, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among the members of the Board.
Brief biographical particulars of the Directors are set out on
pages 17 to 19.

Re-election of directors

All Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term as stipulated under the provision A.4.1 of the
CG Code but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws. In accordance with the relevant
provisions in the Bye-laws of the Company, if the appointment of
Directors is made by the Board, the Directors so appointed must
stand for election by the shareholders at the first annual general
meeting following their appointments and all Directors, except
the Chairman, must stand for re-election by the shareholders by
rotation. Separate resolutions are proposed for the election of
each director.
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Nomination of directors

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to set out
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
to select and recommend candidates for directorship.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the
Company, monitors performance and the related risks and
controls in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Company.
Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
Executive Directors or the officer in charge of each division
and function who is required to report back to the Board.
Functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to
management are reviewed periodically. All Board members have
separate and independent access to the senior management,
and are provided with full and timely information about the
conduct of the business and development of the Company,
including monthly reports and recommendations on significant
matters. Should separate independent professional advice be
considered necessary by the Directors or any Board Committee,
independent professional services would be made available to
the Directors or such Board Committee upon request. The Board
has delegated some of its functions to the Board Committees,
details of which are set out below. Matters specifically reserved
for the Board include approval of financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policies, material
contracts, significant appointments such as Company Secretary
and external auditor, terms of reference of Board Committees, as
well as major corporate policies.

To implement the strategies and plans approved by the Board,
Executive Directors and senior management meet on a regular
basis to review the performance of the Group and make
financial and operational decisions. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover on directors and officers liability for
its directors and officers.

Details of the responsibilities, membership, attendance and
activities during the year of each Board Committee are set out
on pages 25 to 29.

EEEE

REZEEHEFEREETRABAEFZH
ROHEHREREBEEREAMRAZIES
FE 2R

EFECEMARRE

EXARAREARBZBRBEE ERKRA
NAARAR R - X R EA AR RREE BIRIELE
BoHMITESHEMPINDETEABERIK
BREARNAHEER WANEFSER-BF
EREZBERZTIRTEEE 2BESTE IR
Ao rBEFEXRBENEANMBYREBESRE
BE VERHEBARREBELAERZZ2E
BIRER BREAFHERFEZTARSE IE
EEZ RWEESHNEINEFZREERAREL
ARGENBIEXER AIREARHER
MEREBYEXRF - EFESCTRELD
BETEEZES ARFBIN T -HER
BTESSRBEZFEBEERMBRE K
BHR SBREAZY BEAGHN EAL
(Pl AR ME MINEZHED) EFLEE
BREGEANTIEAFBE-

RATRESEER ZRBEGE HTES
kefEREecHen RAAEERE X
FHMBEREERE-ARAEREEERD
BRABLHEGBEZEZTRSMABEERR -

REEEZEeNFAZEE KE SFHE
KRB FIEH N FE2B5EF208H -




EEERRARAT
—x sy | 23

Corporate Governance Report

Board meetings and attendance

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy.
Four Board meetings were held in 2015. At the Board meetings,
the Board reviewed significant matters including the Company’s
annual and interim financial statements, proposals for final and
interim dividends (if any), annual report and half-year report. At
least 14 days’ notice is given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings and all Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. All minutes of the Board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are available
to all Directors for inspection. During the year, the Chairman of
the Company has held a meeting with all the Independent Non-
executive Directors without other Executive Directors presented.

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings in
2015 is set out below:

TRERBES
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Attendance/

Number of

Meetings

HE

Directors Eo] FEIXE

Executive Directors HBITESE

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) RINESE () 4/4

Mr. Luo Xi Zhi BEBZRE 4/4

Mr. Wang Yu EREE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHITES

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor B 5K 5 o A 4/4

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis =LA 4/4

Dr. Law Chun Kwan Z RS+ 3/4

FTEREEHTE

Chairman and chief executive officer

EERTUEAAEAEERREREATE
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and ZBEETES TEBRF—AFRME HEE/N
should not be performed by the same individual but Mr. Lau Siu EBEAERRERERARAEBREBATE 2B
Ying currently assumes both roles of the Chairman and the Chief 17 o

Executive Officer of the Company.

Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
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Provision A.4 of the CG Code states that all directors should be
subject to re-election at regular intervals. However, Mr. Lau Siu
Ying, being the Chairman of the Board, does not need to retire
by rotation.

Mr. Lau Siu Ying has been in charge of the overall management
of the Company since its incorporation. As a result, although he
does not need to retire by rotation and assumes both roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
the Board considers that such arrangement at the Group’s
current stage of development can facilitate the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and maximise the effectiveness of
its operations. Nevertheless, through the supervision from the
Board including the Independent Non-executive Directors, the
interests of the shareholders should be adequately and fairly
considered.

Directors’ continuing professional development

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the vyear,
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board’s responsibilities. Sufficient resources
are provided to enable the Board Committees to undertake their
specific roles. The respective role, responsibilities and activities
of each Board Committee are set out below:
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Remuneration committee

The principal role of the Remuneration Committee is to
determine and review the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management, including salaries,
bonuses, share options and other plans. The Remuneration
Committee reviews and approves the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives and considers salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group, so as to align
management incentives with shareholders’ interests.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and an Executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Chang
Wing Seng, Victor, an Independent Non-executive Director. The
Company Secretary of the Company serves as the secretary
of the committee. Minutes for the meetings are sent to the
committee members within a reasonable time after the meetings.
The full terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
website.
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The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year FNEEeRNFRAZEAKNEREZEEXNEBEE
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members FHmIBERAT:
are as follows:
Membership and Attendance REREHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
R
Members %8 HINE
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Chairman) B EE (F/E) 1/
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis =R LA 1/1
Dr. Law Chun Kwan FEiRmE L 0/1
Executive Director BITES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying 2 EBRE 1/1
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A meeting was held in the year in which the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the remuneration policies and approved
the salaries and bonuses of the Executive Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has communicated
with the Chairman of the Company about proposals relating to
the remuneration packages of other Executive Directors and
senior management.

Details of directors’ emoluments and retirement benefits are
disclosed on page 108. Remuneration payable to members of
senior management is disclosed on page 130. Share options
granted under the Company’s share option plan are disclosed
on pages 123 to 125.

Audit committee

The Audit Committee reviews financial information of the Group,
monitors the effectiveness of the external audit and oversees
the appointment, remuneration and terms of engagement of
the Company’s external auditor, as well as their independence.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
financial reporting process and the system of internal controls
and risk management. The Board also delegated corporate
governance functions to the Audit Committee, including the
review and monitoring of (a) the development and review of the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
recommendations; (b) the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; (c) the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) the code of conduct of the
Company; and (e) the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and its compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report. The full terms
of reference setting out the committee’s authority and its role
and responsibilities are available on the Company’s website and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s website.
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The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, with one of whom having the relevant
professional qualifications and expertise. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor, an
Independent Non-executive Director. The Company Secretary
acts as secretary of the Audit Committee. Sufficient resources
are made available to the Audit Committee when independent
legal or professional advice is required.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. The external
auditors of the Company are invited to the meetings, take part
in the discussions and answer questions from the committee
members. By invitation of the Audit Committee, other Directors
and senior executives may also attend the meetings.

The Audit Committee held two meetings in the year. The
Company Secretary prepared full minutes of the audit committee
meetings with details of discussions and decisions reached. The

TRERBES
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draft and final versions of minutes were sent to all committee ERS Rt ERBERNEEAT2BEZES
members within a reasonable time after each meeting. K8 -
The composition of the Audit Committee during the year as well ERZEeRNFACHANERSZEENELE
as the meeting attendance of the committee members are as GH2BERWT
follows:
Membership and Attendance REREHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE
Members [g=] YN
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Chairman) BTk (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis EHRYEAE 2/2
Dr. Law Chun Kwan Z R imiE + 1/2
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During the year, the Audit Committee has discussed with the
external auditor their independence and the nature and scope of
the audit; reviewed the interim and annual financial statements
of the Group, particularly judgmental areas, before submission
to the Board; reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group, findings and management’s response;
reviewed the Group’s adherence to the code provisions in the
CG Code. The Audit Committee recommended the Board to
adopt the interim and annual financial statements for 2015. The
Audit Committee has also performed the aforesaid corporate
governance duties as delegated to it by the Board.

Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to set
out the nomination procedures and the process and criteria
adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship.
The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises five members,
a majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors
and is chaired by the Chairman of the Board. The Company
Secretary of the Company serves as secretary of the
Nomination Committee. Minutes for the meetings are sent to
the Nomination Committee members within a reasonable time
after the meetings. The full terms of reference are available on
the Company’s website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited’s website.
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The composition of the Nomination Committee during the year
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members
are as follows:

TRERBES

REZHENENZMARREZARKELR
EHZERMT -

Membership and Attendance REREHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE
Members 8 PN
Executive Directors HTESE
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) BINESE (FE) 1/1
Mr. Wang Yu TFREAE 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor 1§ 1/1
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis HRAEE 1/1
Dr. Law Chun Kwan FERIMIE L 0/1
A meeting was held in the year, in which members of the REZEENFRNERIT-RAEE gLEX
Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and BEEMNEST 2 8H ARRAK-
composition of the Board.
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY EEest{bEE

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. With a view
to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged the responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The auditors are
responsible to form an independent opinion, based on their
audits, on the Group’s financial statements and express their
opinions.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2015
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 47 to
49.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

BDO Limited was re-appointed as the Company’s external
auditors by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on
28th May, 2015, until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting. They are primarily responsible for providing audit
services in connection with the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31st December, 2015. During the year, the
fees charged to the accounts of the Group for BDO Limited’s
statutory audit services amounted to HK$820,000 (2014:
HK$820,000). In addition, HK$40,000 was charged for non-audit
service, which was for interim review service (2014: HK$40,000).

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie, the Group Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Company, undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update his skills and
knowledge in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The Board is committed to implementing an effective and
sound internal controls system to safeguard the interest of
shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated
to the management the implementation of the system of
internal controls and to the Audit Committee the review of all
relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management function within an established framework.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company is committed to high standard of business ethics
and integrity. A code of conduct is enforced on all employees
of the Group. The employees at all levels are expected to act in
an honest, diligent and responsible manner. No personal gifts or
other forms of advantages from any person or organization doing
business with the Group can be accepted by any employee.
Business partners and customers are reminded from time to
time that our policy forbids any employee or agent of the Group
from accepting any gift from them.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with
shareholders is essential to enable them to have a clear
assessment of the Group’s performance as well as
accountability of the board of directors. Major means of
communication with shareholders of the Company are as
follows:

Information disclosure on corporate website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely and timely
as possible. The Company maintains a corporate website at
www.fortunetele.com where important information about the
Group’s activities and corporate matters such as annual reports
and interim reports to shareholders, announcements, business
development and operations, corporate governance practices
and other information is available for review by shareholders and
other stakeholders. When announcements are made through the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the same
information will be made available on the Company’s website.

TRERBES
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General meetings with shareholders BEAE

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful ARARIZBRRBFRSRE-—FEERTE &
platform for direct communication between the Board and EFglRREEER RRERAGLeH®E
shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each BEARYB LB I 2 FBEREEBEILRER -
substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

The 2015 annual general meeting (2015 AGM”) was held on TE-RFREBRAFAE ([ ZE—RFRREA
28th May, 2015. The attendance record of the Directors at the FRGDERZZE—AFHRAZTN\BET
2015 AGM is set out below: EFHR-T T FEREBFRE 2 L8557
LUNNE
Attendance/
Number of
general meetings
HES
Directors g% AR K& IRE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) Bl NERE () 11
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi BEBZRE 11
Mr. Wang Yu FREE 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKEITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor Bl oK B o A& 1/1
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis BRI L E 1/1
Dr. Law Chun Kwan FRIMIE LT 1/1
The Company’s external auditor also attended the 2015 AGM. ARABZHINEZEMTBELE_S—AFRRE

BEXE-
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Investor relations

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its
activities to those with a legitimate interest and to respond to
their questions. Questions received from the general public and
individual shareholders are answered promptly. In all cases, great
care is taken to ensure that no price-sensitive information is
disclosed selectively.

Shareholders’ rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders
of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the CG
Code:

Convening of a special general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to clause 58 of the Company’s bye-laws, a special
general meeting may be convened by the Board upon requisition
by any shareholder holding not less than one-tenth of the
issued share capital of the Company and the securities being
held carrying the right of voting at any general meetings of the
Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company at the
head office address of the Company, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the
proposal regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

The Board shall arrange to hold such general meeting within two
(2) months after the receipt of such written requisition. Pursuant
to clause 59 of the Company’s bye-laws, the Company shall
serve requisite notice of the general meeting, including the time,
place of meeting and particulars of resolutions to be considered
at the meeting and the general nature of the business.

If within twenty one (21) days of the receipt of such written
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such special
general meeting, the shareholder shall do so pursuant to the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Act”).
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at general

meetings by shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow the Act for including

a resolution at an annual general meeting of the Company

(*AGM”). The requirements and procedures are set out below:

(i)

(i

(ii)

Pursuant to section 79 of the Act, shareholder(s) holding
() not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having the right to vote at the general
meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 shareholders, can submit a
written request stating the resolution intended to be moved
at the AGM or a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular
general meeting.

The written request/statements must be signed by the
shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the Company’s
registered office and/or principal office in Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six
weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the
general meeting in the case of any other requisition.

Pursuant to section 80 of the Act, if the written request is
in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board (i) to
include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (i) to
circulate the statement for the general meeting, provided
that the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum
of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of
the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted
by the shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders. On
the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to
meet the Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the
shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be
included in the agenda for the AGM or the statement will
not be circulated for the general meeting.
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If a shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting convened to deal with appointment/
election of director(s), wishes to propose a person (other
than the shareholder himself/herself) for election as a
director at that meeting, he/she can deposit a written
notice at the Company’s registered office and/or its
principal office in Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary, not less than seven (7) clear days but
not more than fourteen (14) clear days before the date of
the general meeting. In order for the Company to inform
all Shareholders of that proposal, the written notice must
state the full name of the person proposed for election
as a director, his/her biographical details as required by
rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the
shareholder concerned and that person indicating his/her
willingness to be elected.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns

to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose

contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

China Fortune Holdings Limited

Room 1505-07, Tower A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road,
Kwai Chung, Hong Kong

Email: info@chinafortune.com

Tel No.: +852 2422 0811

Fax No.: +852 2428 0988

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’

enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board
committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer the
shareholders’ questions.
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The directors present their annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and principal associates
are set out in notes 39 and 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st Decemober,
2015 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 50 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared during the year. The directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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WARRANTS

On 20th May, 2014, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Convoy Investment Services Limited (as
placing agent) for the placing of up to 160,000,000 warrants
of the Company at the issue price of HK$0.01 per warrant.
The subscription price attaching to each warrant is HK$0.50
per subscription share (subject to adjustment). The closing
price of the shares of the Company was HK$0.44 per share
as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the placing
agreement. The placing was completed on 15th July, 2014
and an aggregate of 160,000,000 warrants were issued to not
less than six investors, who are individual investors, being third
parties independent of the Company and its connected persons
(as defined under the Listing Rules). The warrants confers its
holders the right to subscribe for subscription shares during
a period of two years commencing from 15th July, 2014. The
subscription shares to be issued pursuant thereto shall be
issued and allotted under the general mandate to issue shares
granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 21st May, 2013. The Company raised a net
proceed of approximately HK$1.3 million from the issue of the
warrants and had been utilised as general working capital of the
Group. The placing would enhance the capital and shareholders’
base of the Company.

As at 31st December. 2015, an aggregate of 3,200,000
subscription shares have been issued upon exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to the 3,200,000 warrants, whilst
156,800,000 warrants remain outstanding and unexercised.
A net proceeds of approximately HK$1.6 million arising from
exercising such 3,200,000 warrants have been raised. The
Company has utilised such net proceeds as general working
capital of the Group.

Other details of the warrants of the Company are set out in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31st December, 2015 and
31st December, 2014 consisted of contributed surplus and
accumulated profits were nil.
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi
Mr. Wang Yu

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
Dr. Law Chun Kwan

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws,
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis shall retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

REARE-NAN-FRFDE (KER]) AR
AzE#RSR (WE)ARUDIK A ET
FIBRT  RABTNBUNEHRHRE KKK
B HAEH DK :

(@) AREEZIAGEEIINBBZAE:
19

b) BEZAZREERMIRABEDET
P 7R e B 4 g (B R 2 AN o

=

ARBANAFEREERABEENNHBH L
E=mT:

BHIiTESE:

B NEEE(FE)
BBZRE
FTREE

BUHHITEE:

LNt
wmAUEE
RIRME L

RIBEA QR 2 R EIARIFS7IR - JRUA A
REEBRAFRG LEREE ETEER
WHRE R B -

BREERRAEFAS L EREF 2 EEHME
BEARNBHEEMMERRTLIR —FATA
HAEEBAME OREMERIN) MK LR
BEH -




The term of office of each of the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors is the date up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31st December, 2015, the interests and short positions of
the directors, the chief executive and their associates in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Name of director Capacity

Expgs g%

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (“Mr. Lau”)
BN ExA (TBIEAE]) ZREEERAE (W)
Beneficial owner

BB A

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
B E

Beneficial owner
EmEE A

Beneficial owner
EmEE A

Dr. Law Chun Kwan

BiRMEL

Held by a discretionary trust (Note)
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Percentage of

Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of
shares held the Company
e T HEAQAAERT
ZEREE BREBD
188,300,013 22.63%
267,996,285 32.21%
456,296,298 54.84%
1,500,000 0.18%
1,000,000 0.12%
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Note:

These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by a discretionary trust,
the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children.

The interest disclosed above represents long positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executives
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in
any shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as defined in the SFO at 31st
December, 2015.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. The following
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table discloses movements in the Company’s share options

during the year:

Category | - Directors

FIE-E=

Mr. Lau

x4k

Mr. Luo Xi Zhi

BB RE

Mr. Wang Yu

IREE

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor
o E

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
HAMEE

Dr. Law Chun Kwan

BB L

Total for directors

Exms

Category Il - Employees
FNE-EE

Employees

E&

Category lll - Consultants

FNE-FEMN

Consultants
A

Total for all categories

Fir A SRl 5t

Date of grant

Rii B

12.7.2013
12.7.2013
12.7.2013
12.7.2013
12.7.2013

12.7.2013

12.7.2013

12.7.2013

Exercise
price
TEE
HK$
BT

0.255
0.255
0.255
0.255
0.255

0.255

0.255

0.255

EEEREE

AR RBIRAE B2 HERR A BRN
520 - FRREALABBES N2

Outstanding Exercised Outstanding
at beginning during at end of
of the year the year the year
FENERITRE FRITE FRERTHE
8,000,000 - 8,000,000
1,000,000 - 1,000,000
1,000,000 - 1,000,000
1,500,000 - 1,500,000
1,000,000 (1,000,000) -
12,500,000 (1,000,000) 11,500,000
100,000 - 100,000
300,000 = 300,000
12,900,000 (1,000,000) 11,900,000
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BERONIEZEZ2ZH
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no b EXHHE L ERRES EIIN RNE R T E
time during the year was the Company, its holding company or PA/NI=T = S /N [T o o G PSRN B e Y o
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable FA L BE AR AR EEREE AN S
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of FREMEABE RO ESMER &5 -
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or BEZREBSAMISHE I FEARAFRNMEES
any other body corporate. None of the directors, their spouses FRIA]RERNNTEESEZERN TG ITEF
or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for % EREF) o

the securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights

during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF BEEREAGHRBERGI2ESR
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transactions nor contracts of significance ARAREEBENARRE  HIZER A B S E(]
to which the Company, its holding company or any of its B ARRNFRFRNETMEECOI L 2 @E
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company REREREHNHTHEEEIBEE R ERE-
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at
31st December, 2015, the following shareholders had notified
the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of
the Company.

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company
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FERR

RBARBIRIEEF & HIE 50 533615 FT %
BEZEFERREMINT RZ2E—FRF+=A
=t+—HB ARQREBTIREERARARDHE
TRARHEEHEEZ -

AR EAEFREE.10E T2 EBK

Percentage of
Number of the issued share

Name of issued ordinary capital of
substantial shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
FBFE®T (AR ERT
FTERREAR =30) ZBERHE REZBS L
Mr. Lau Held by a discretionary trust (Note 1) 188,300,013 22.63%
2k rREFEEA (M)
Beneficial owner 267,996,285 32.21%
ERmEAA
456,296,298 54.84%
Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy Held by controlled entity (Note 2) 188,300,013 22.63%
FEEE et ERsa (M2)
Notes: M 5

1. These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by
a discretionary trust. The beneficiaries of the discretionary trust
include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children.

2. Under the SFO, Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy is deemed to have interests
in the shares of the Company as he is entitled to exercise more
than one-third of the voting power at general meetings of Future
2000 Limited.

1. ZERNBEEBREZHESEMAKILZAF
Future 2000 Limited$§ 5 - Mz A Al —2#E
ARFA ZEEEEZXa ARERSE HED
BRETLZ-

2. REZBHFLHPEGRH ARFEELEERER
Future 2000 Limited Z RR K & 1T =5 2 —IA
ERER SR SEAARNRR R R
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31st December, 2015, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015:

(1) The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and the largest customer represent
approximately 82.2% and 36.5%, respectively, of the
Group’s total revenue;

(2) The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers and the largest supplier represent
approximately 66.2% and 25.4%, respectively, of the
Group’s total purchase.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of
a director or a shareholder of the Company which to the
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had a beneficial interest in any
of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 20 to 35 of this annual report, the Company has complied
throughout the year with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices and the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which were then in force during
the respective periods.

Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is also set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Group has a share option scheme under which the
Company may grant share options to the participants, including
directors and employees, to subscribe for shares of the
Company, details of the scheme is set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31st December, 2015.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No material significant events occurred after the reporting
period.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Siu Ying
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 30th March, 2016
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|IBDO

TEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{&E : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

B %A R

25% Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
FEETHER11158
Tk H>254&

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA FORTUNE HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEREERERDE

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of China Fortune Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 138,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31st December, 2015, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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Except for the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence as described in the “Basis for disclaimer of opinion”
paragraphs, we conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
Because of the matter described in the “Basis for disclaimer
of opinion” paragraphs, however, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As detailed in Note 17(i) of the consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group’s application for a mining exploitation
permit turned out to be unsuccessful. Notwithstanding this fact,
the directors are of the opinion that the Group is probable in
obtaining the mining exploitation permit in the next application
for renewal. Accordingly in the assessment of the recoverable
amounts of the Group’s mining right and the related plant
and equipment of approximately HK$266,342,000 and
HK$9,918,000 respectively and the carrying amount of the
related deferred tax liabilities of approximately HK$63,967,000
as at 31st December, 2015 (“the mining activities related
assets and liability”) the directors assume that the Group will
obtain the mining exploitation permit in the next application for
renewal. As there is no sufficient appropriate audit evidence
for us to assess the likelihood of the Group in obtaining the
mining exploitation permit, we are not able to satisfy ourselves
of the appropriateness of the assumptions used by the directors
in assessing the recoverable amounts and carrying amount
of the mining activities related assets and liability as at 31st
December, 2015 and whether any impairment loss on the mining
activities related assets should be recognised and whether any
adjustment to the mining activities related liability should be
made.

Any adjustments to the assets and liability as described above
might have a significant consequential effect on the Group’s
financial position as at 31st December, 2015 and of its financial
performance for the year then ended, and the related disclosures
thereof in the consolidated financial statements.
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DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Because of the significance of the matter described in the
Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we have not been
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide
a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. In all other
aspects, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man

Practising Certificate Number: PO5309
30th March, 2016
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE —T—HAF+_-_A=+—HIFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Loss before income tax
Income tax

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
that may be subsequently
transferred to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on
translation from
functional currency to
presentation currency

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Loss for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

LOSS PER SHARE
Basic

Diluted

Notes
B 5

W 2= 7
B B AR

EM

H 45 A

Hth s MBS 1R 8
HE R KA

TTHRE M

B & B A 9
DIEME RN R ZEE

BrFTS AT ES 18 11
P58 10

FEER
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FEZEAKA

EHFREER:
ZAN/NETEZ 2 SN
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EHFREZEARA:

ZAN/NETEZ 2SN
IR MR S

BRER 15
BN

%58

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FH&TT
157,903 57,587
(152,509) (49,027)
5,394 8,560
2,172 5,614
(8,102) (1,420)
(6,592) (10,408)
(18,231) (30,040)
(1,302) (1,323)
(1,986) (1,369)
(28,647) (30,386)
(28,647) (30,386)
(12,612) (7,178)
(41,259) (37,564)
(23,118) (24,482)
(5,529) (5,904)
(28,647) (30,386)
(31,774) (29,474)
(9,485) (8,090)
(41,259) (37,564)

(2.78) cents 1l

(2.96) cents 1lli

N/A ~3E A

N/A i
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Non-current Assets
Plant and equipment
Mining right
Investments in associates
Available-for-sale investments
Club memberships

Current Assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Amount due from a
non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary

Held-for-trading investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables

Amounts due to related parties

Amount due to a
non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary

Tax payables

Warrants

Other borrowings

Net Current Assets

Total Assets less Current
Liabilities

FRBEE
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Notes

B &t

16
17
18
19
20

21

22

23

24
25

26

36(a)

23

30
21

a BRI &R

At 31st December, 2015 W =_ZE—HF+_-_A=+—H
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
10,033 11,311
266,342 279,771
2,072 3,411
11,443 10,303
1,096 1,106
290,986 305,902
2,017 6,502
43,282 14,919
3,586 3,767
2,111
12,852 71,264
63,848 96,452
24,882 25,080
106 3,167
209 405
6,394 6,486
1,568 1,588
- 15,498
33,159 52,224
30,689 44,228
321,675 350,130
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At 31st December, 2015 R-ZE—H&F+_-_A=+—H

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt TExT FABT
Capital and Reserves EXR#HE
Share capital % A 28 83,206 82,906
Reserves {1 82,167 112,966
Equity attributable to owners of A FHEE AEGER
the Company 165,373 195,872
Non-controlling interests FEE ) 1 2 77,581 87,066
242,954 282,938
Non-current Liabilities ERBAEE
Other borrowings EmEE 27 14,754 -
Deferred tax liabilities R IE B & 31 63,967 67,192
78,721 67,192
321,675 350,130
On behalf of the Board REESF®
Mr. Lau Siu Ying Mr. Luo Xi Zhi
B /NERE BE2%E
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

1 EF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERERBEX

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 H#E —T—HAF+_-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FERERZERER AR
—ZE—AFHR

.

KRAREAER
Non-
Share Share Special  Translation Statutory Share option  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve funds reserve losses Total interests  Total equity
il
BE RBEE  BRIGE  REEE  AvEe  BRESE 8B 4% Ex  ExEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Thx ThL TERL T TEL TERL THRL T TEL
(Note i) (Note ii (Note iii) (Note iv) (Note v)
(W) (i) () (KEw) (W)

At 1st January, 2014 RZE-mE-F-H 82,316 393,311 2,481 84,921 30,132 1,446 (371,072) 223,535 95,156 318,691

Loss for the year FEEHR - - - - - - (24,482) (24,482) (5,904) (30,386)

Exchange differences arisingon ~~ RBEN KB 2 25|%%

translation of functional currency ~ MELZEHZE

to presentation currency - - - (4,992) - - - (4,992) (2,186) (7,178)
Total comprehensive income FEZEBMA

for the year - . - 4,992) - S padg) (94T B0%0)  (37564)
Issue of shares upon exercise of TR RIER E (TR

share options 470 1,101 - - - (872) - 1,199 - 1,199
Issue of shares upon exercise of RT3 L AR IEEE

unlisted warrants BkfR 120 492 - - - - - 612 - 612

At 31st December, 2014 RZF-METZA=1-8 82,906 394,904 2,481 79,929 30,132 1,074 (395,554) 195,872 87,066 282,938

Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - (23,118) (23,118) (5,529) (28,647)

Exchange differences arisingon ~~ FIREN &R Z 25 &%

translation of functional currency ~ MELZEHZE

to presentation currency - - - (8,656) - - - (8,656) (3,956) (12,612)
Total comprehensive income ERZEERA

for the year - - - (8,656] - - @iy E 0485 (41,259
Issue of shares upon exercise of  RTEEREHLTRE

share options 100 238 - - - (83 - 255 - 255
Issue of shares upon exercise of RT3 LR IEER

unlisted warrants Bk 200 820 - - - - - 1,020 - 1,020

At 315t December, 2015 WZZ-R5+-A=1-A 83206 395962 2,481 71273 30,132 91 18672 165373 TT58 240,954

Notes: B

()  The share premium represents the amount subscribed for share i) BHEREEABERASHEBLAEHE-
capital in excess of nominal value.

(i) The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal (i) HRIFEEEMEEHBAR ZROEERERR
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal AR —NANNFETEBRSARRKEMMET
value of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the ZRHEERZERE-
time of the group reorganisation in 1999.

(i) The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising on iy HMEFEBEESNEB2EE BBEFHEEH
retranslating the net assets/liabilities of foreign operations into BE L2 KB mMEES 2 WS B8
presentation currency.

(iv) The statutory funds are required by the relevant laws applicable vy 2EEScEEARAEBREREARKEM
to the Group’s subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic (THREDKZZHB AR ZBBEGBREZ
of China (the “PRC”) and can be utilised to offset the prior years’ i WA AR EEZERBINEARBESF
losses of the PRC subsidiaries. EZEE-

(v)  The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options vy BREREEEEELEWMRITEZBREZ

granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in Note 3
to the consolidated financial statements.

NFE FBERGE W B HREK M 3B AR &
ERNRZRH 2 TBRE— SR -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE —T—HAF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&T FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Loss before income tax M FT1S B A ES 18 (28,647) (30,386)
Adjustments for: =&
Interest expenses MERZ 1,302 1,323
Interest income B U A (1,007) (2,432)
Fair value loss on held-for-trading BIEEEREZAFEEE
investments 621 -
Impairment loss recognised MEKREZERR
in respect of trade and H b IR BR URE R
other receivables B EEE 2,767 -
Impairment loss recognised MAHEEREER
in respect of available-for-sale VRN SR
investments 6,234 -
Impairment loss recognised RE REBERBEEBE
in respect of plant and equipment - 991
Impairment loss recognised MEMEERERCRERBE
in respect of club memberships - 110
Reversal of impairment loss of —XKEE AR REEERE
an associate (45) -
Write-back of rebate payables B [E] FE 1 B N ER 5K (1,489) -
Share of results of associates pak ey kANl ¥ 1,986 1,369
Write down of inventories 17 & MU 1,171 298
Recovery of write down of 17 & HoR 1 =l
inventories (640) (628)
Depreciation of plant and WEREEITE
equipment 783 1,657
Gain on disposal of plant and LEMRE REEH s
equipment - 295




Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and
other receivables
Decrease in amount due from
a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary

(Decrease)/increase in amount due to

a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary

Decrease in trade and other payables

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Payment for acquisition of shares
in an associate

Purchase of available-for-sale
investments

Purchase of plant and equipment

Purchase of held-for-trading
investments

Proceed from disposal of
held-for-trading investments

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EELASRBACKERERE

FERD
R 5B SRR R A AR A
(),

e — B M B A R — B IRt
P RR IR R A

e — M B A A — & SR fE 1t
MR IE CRd) /10

FEAT 5 5 BR AR e L At A BR BORL A
REEZDFRAREFR

REEH

2 A 8

Wi — KB E QR 2 3K
BEAHDERE

BERE M&E
BEREEERE

HEREEERE ZHERRA

REZFDFRAREFHE

hEEERRARAT
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GERERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 H#E —T—AF+_-_A=+—HI-FE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FH&TT
(16,964) (27,403)
3,954 1,067
(31,130) 5,847
- 404

(196) 405
(11) (6,413)
(44,347) (26,093)
1,007 2,432
(1,163) (3,750)
(7,374) -
(15) (635)
(4,392) —
1,573 -
(10,364) (1,953)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 EZ —F

—HE+ZA=t—HLFE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Eﬂlﬁfﬁﬂ
(Repayment to)/advance from BE)  RE—RBREZFZBN
a director (2,561) 1,525
Proceeds from issue of shares upon  JATT{E AL # B 31T IR0 2
exercise of share options Fris k18 255 1,199
Proceeds from placing of unlisted &I LRIk ER 2 15 IE
warrants - 1,600
Proceeds from issue of shares upon  FATT{E IF T R A% 48 7B A B35 17
exercise of unlisted warrants f% 3 2 BTiS k38 1,000 600
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED ®EE® (FiH) FEHRLFE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1,306) 4,924
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRBEEBEYHL FE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (56,017) (23,122)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EHIzBERESESEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 71,264 96,581
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXRFEH T8
changes (2,395) (2,195)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT X BEESRESZEY
END OF YEAR 12,852 71,264
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HeRBReZEYEBR I
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances /e RIBITE 12,852 18,764
Short term highly liquid investments =8 |ELHH&§ - 52,500
12,852 71,264
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE—Z—HAF+-_A=+—HAILFE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in Bermuda under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended). The shares of the Company
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent and ultimate holding
company is Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) for the convenience
of the shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are distribution and trading
of mobile phones and related accessories, development
of marketing and after-sales service network and mining
and processing of celestite, zinc and lead minerals.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries and principal
associates are set out in Notes 39 and 40, respectively.

—RER

RAARABBEBEARE-NMN—FRAFE
() FAaREFMA Iz IHRE2ER
RNEl EROREBBRAER AR AR
([BRFT)) e ARRZ B RAAREK
ERARARNKRBELZESEMAZZA

A]Future 2000 Limited ° A2 A 3FE =
EREFEEEMIB MU TEFRIAGE
B — 8 AR EE -

ARBZYEEEBSARE (ARE]) -
HRARRTINEE LT - RITERR 4
aMBmExegNET ([BT]) 25

ARBRREBRB AR ANEB 2T EXE
BROELEERBEAMABET %
RIS RN ER RSB ARKXEA -
FREEONMARIIN TR L EM
BRANTIEBERAZEBED RSN
71391240 °
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. HAEZEMBREERN ([FEH

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHEAEHR )

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1st (a) HRAFET BT E B K&
January, 2015 Bl-R=-BE-BF-—F—HEH
The Group has adopted the following amendments REFBEEHEMN VBB
to HKFRSs (which include all Hong Kong Financial ([EFHetiA®E ) BhItEEZE
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting HEAMRZZE—RAF—A—Bs(Z%E
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations) issued by the HA vz EEHEAE RN TSN B RE
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants KRBT (BIEME S BEREE
(“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations and A - HFEe £ ([FE2H%ER]])
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st L#ZE) -

January, 2015.

HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2010- EEUERELR —E—FTEFE-F
(Amendments) 2012 Cycle ({BETA) ——FREEE
Prgid
HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2011- EEUBRELE] S ——FF - F
(Amendments) 2013 Cycle CHEY) —=FERH7EE
Prgid
The adoption of these amendments has no material FRNZ BT W AEE 2 EABR
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial REE KT E

statements.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE—Z—HAF+-_A=+—HAILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not

2. KABEBMBHREER ([HFERM
BHREEQ]) (£)

(b) EREfEAE S FRENZFET AL E

BUBREER

AEEYEEFRATIIERMER
KRR A] e AR B 2 47 B A TS 3R
RIBBZIE] /KRB BB ®RE

been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKAS 27

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

January, 2016

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

January, 2018

Annual Improvements 2012-
2014 Cycle!

Disclosure Initiative’

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?®

Financial Instruments?

Regulatory Deferral Accounts'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

S The effective date is deferred

A8 -

BRI BHEER T——FE_F

SCCHES) —NERBAF
[ Bt

BB g EA BERER
FAR 2 BF]

B g EA BEMEREH
F16HREBS AEXAHE
el
F385k 2 1EF]

BB g EA BYUMBRE 2
F275R 2 1EFT mE

BAEMBREER &ﬁ%iﬁi,ﬁ\ /N
FIHERES FEBhEL
el Fﬂéﬁféﬁ%i&&
F285 2 1E7] A2

BB BREEL SBIA
5%

(Z2—WF)

BAEMBREER EERTERF
1455

BEEMBREERN TRPAEHKA?
155%

T RIE-RE-A-HRZRBEBRZ
FREHERER

2 RZE-N\F-HA—HzmzER®KRZ
FEHBEER

¢ EMAHEEE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 EZ —F

0

—HE+ZA=t—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2. KABRBMBHREER ([HFERM
BHmEEA]) (£)

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage entities
to use judgment in the application of HKAS 1 when
considering the layout and content of their financial
statements.

An entity’s share of other comprehensive income from
equity accounted interests in associates and joint
ventures will be split between those items that will and
will not be reclassified to profit or loss, and presented
in aggregate as a single line item within those two
groups.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
— Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of
a revenue-based depreciation method for items of
property, plant and equipment. The amendments to
HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
amortisation based on revenue is not appropriate for
intangible assets. This presumption can be rebutted if
either the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue or revenue and the consumption of the
economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated.

Amendments to HKAS 27 - Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the
equity method in accounting for its investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its

separate financial statements.

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) EBEMHAE M KERZFETAENETE
not yet effective (Continued) B EREER (FE)

BERETEUNEIR BT - RKERKE

ZETRARBERERAEES
B E15E B B0 B R R
BT (8 1M

BEREEAERSENEARNBER
AIRARERE RSN E M EE RS
DRBEXTERENBREERD
BE UWHMAESRE-THEEESR
i o

\

_I

0/

k

BRI EAEIRREREFER
I8 BRI BB ERBHE 2T
BERE

FRERTERE165 2 BT ILE M
P as mEEH T NEWE BB &
RERBFENE-FEGHENF
385 2 BRI Bl A — B AR ER AR
”“W%Wﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁéﬁﬁm%
BE-ZBRANKTRER
Wﬁﬁ-%mﬁﬁémM%Aﬁi
U A LR T B B AR 2 BB T
S E R -

ERETENE27R 2B - B Y
BHRRZEHZE

ﬁ%ﬁ{/nTﬁn -1 EE QE’J?%XZEJW%
BRP U EZENENE R R
EERBECEZRE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 H#E —T—HAF+_-_A=+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the
contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that
meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) if the objective of the entity’s
business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets.
Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to measure equity instruments that are not
held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”).

2. KABRBMBHREER ([HFERM
BHmEEA]) (£)

(b) BBEME KL ZHET AT E

BYUBHEEER (&)

BBV BREENE10RREASH
ERSE28H 2R —REEHAKE
RAREELECBEERER A

Hi
HEFOTABER & THR
Wk BRIEE - EXH PN —HE
% RIERRAEBRENEE - R2Z
ERGYRTBR-BEXHNEE "
AEZAR T HBEREERAEEEN
BERRZEAERREHER-

ERMEREENFIR (=ZF—N
F) -¢@MIA

FEMBRE LR FORSERBEHTS
BEDENFEZHER BEHR
AFEMBEMRRBMANRERZE
BIA (EBEBF) ARAEELR
ERMZARNGREE/INAE KR
BEAESMEZERTA(FHRE
MASEOAIR) - — AR SHRANGT &
Mz EEXHRAZBNAFAE K
RENRERARKERNBEE A
NEEHREMFHAAZEBTA
BoFEFAREME2ERKA (R
FEFAEMLZEEAD 277G
B BRI R &Y HE R (L A A
WZEE URATFEFAREMCEE
WAZTTAFEXFFEEE B
TH-FMEHEMBEHREATARA
FEMABRR (MRAFHEF AEE])
ZIAGE-
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. HAEZEMBREERN ([FEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) FIMEAER||) (&)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) EMBEMAE M KERZFETAENETE

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and
new general hedge accounting requirements to allow
entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

BYUBHEEER (&)

ERVBBEEUFIR (ZF -0
F) —€mMIA(#E)

FEMBREERESR AL IR A
FEABSZTAFEZAENE
BEEMAHHERERBRERR (I
RT BB EREIR O ELE
BRI ) AR —REPEFHE -
EERRBMEHRRAEERRER
BB -

BREMBREENFORLAAEES
FHERIEIRIB T KB E ZER -
DR ERTE R ERAFERF
ABmZHBABRIN MBERE
RiE8s B A TFEESHSENE
e m KSR FRIFEELELIEA
SETERACANERIR © tHN - BB IR
SEANFIRRERE G ERIFEI9
BRI ERWBEELRMBEABEZR

;'_Eo

ERUBH/ELEAFIGH-BEFEN
A

L TR T Y Al R S — TR B RO W e TE AR
R -ZERNZLRASERER
R AR BRA SR AER MK
RETEP ZeBRRREHBZER
B RS R I Z 5 7 an S AR H5 P W AR
RE - BEHFME LN FE 155 A E
RETUERRIES (BREELEES
ERIF185E [ W] BB G EASE
115 [REAH | RARRE) -
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of adopting the above Standards and
amendments to existing Standards to the Group. The
Group is not yet in a position to state whether these
new pronouncements will result in substantial changes
to the Group’s accounting policies and financial
statements.

2. KABEBMBHREER ([HFERM
BHREEQ]) (£)

(b) E ML K EMZHET - AEMEET &

BYUBHEEER (&)

ERUBREENFEISRE-FFEN
L ONE: P,

& OIS A F 155 B R OAT A
5 M35

£—F: BHIEREFHNAH

F-F: BHANTFHEHEL

F=®: BEXRSE
FM¥: BRPEIRESENE
£

FHhT: REBHRETZREER
W s

BEMBREEAFIGHRE S EIFE
W R R BN E I3l % FHE 5
%8 EMARBE ST RS LERIRE
FER 2 7708 - xR TR & TR Tt B M
SR E L EE L RE-

A5 | 2 B9 3T R 3 AR 3R
AEAZETHARENYE AR
B R B RS R TR
AEET @HBERMBRELRE
KEB
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2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(c) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance provisions
relating to the preparation of financial statements

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 622, in relation to the preparation
of financial statements apply to the Company in this
financial year.

The directors consider that there is no impact on the
Group’s financial position or performance, however
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622,
impacts on the presentation and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. For example, the
statement of financial position of the Company is now
presented in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements rather than as a primary statement and
related notes to the statement of financial position of
the Company are generally no longer presented.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.

2. KABRBMBHREER ([HFERM
BHREEQ]) (£)

(c) BEmRYFEHRZZHEE R AR
rX

BRE RIS R 2 H B 2 A D)
($622%) (A Y B 8 AR
E NG

EERREAKREZHBHRRKKEA
MEZE R HEBRBUED (F
6228 ) R BR AW BHRERANZZEI R
BE - BPIME - NRAZHMBARNE
ARGV HBMEMEANZ - M
ERTERER MARAMBMRREK
ZHEBHE-—R B2

3. TEEFHHERK
RKBEEHRGEERE

RAVBERREEARFLENE QA
(IRNEE ) 2HHBHmER -EEARFRZ
R RAERRARB R G NN REEERE B
WRETEIRE - RBRABETTEE &
FRXZREMBREEZMEZNR Tt
BRT BERBRZA®R -

FARKESRHE 2B R R EERKE
EYEHEREEELERB YL (RER
BRAME)IIAZEEZEARARA-EES
EZREAT WBRAZHMBHREREEL
HE FARSTHRRERNKEEMKER
REIFRAE -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiaries either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even if
this results in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if
all three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

3. XEEFHEE (&)

RBEEHREEEE (&)

e < B 1) 3% 2K BT B8 % R4 R - H B A
HERERATME 2 ZRHAE  ()IE B
ERAVERTMREERD A FEZARE:
LEE (BHEHE) BERAEENMNER
BIREASEE RIS B ECRE -EN
REREMEEKRAER ML BARA
e ARSTAREHBAEEXERE
EEHEZBERTHBERR-

WiE R - R bl iEes (BB ATAKI B A A
ZHARER) CRAERVISERZR
B B INZIFERIE R ER 2 EIG
P -HErHBARERBNA MR
B RER R AR 2EBAERDA
BN IR RS

B8 2 &

B 8 2 B) A AN /2 )R] 1T {6 4R 7 R A A
KRET - mEBAT=ETE  BIARRE
BB E D AR ETITERED &
FEAEXWIRE T 7] E B R IER
RAEREENREZSENERR WA
EENBRBRZSERRITEAELR
) A SEMTAEE-

RARBHABARRARA R ERE 2R
BRRABRERBE (10F)FIK-HERQ
AZEERARARE R R EREEA
BE o



FERERZERER AR
T -hFEH

.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HZE =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to
make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’'s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the

carrying value of the associate.

Where unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment
of the asset transferred they are recognised immediately
in profit or loss. Any premium paid for an associate above
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the investment in
an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of
the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of plant and equipment includes its purchase price
and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual values,
using the straight-line method. The principal annual rates
used for the current year are as follows:

5%-20% or over the term of the
relevant leases, whichever is

Leasehold improvements

shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 20%-33%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%-25%
An item of plant and equipment is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher

than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss
in the period in which the item is recognised.

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment
under construction or pending installation and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Intangible asset
Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite life are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Mining
right is amortised using the units of production method
based on the proven and probable mineral reserves.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Intangible asset (Continueq)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. In addition, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 H#E —T—HAF+_-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Provision for close down and restoration costs

Close down and restoration costs are provided in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the
related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during mine
development or during the production phase, based on
the net present value of estimated future costs. The cost is
capitalised where it gives rise to future benefits, whether the
rehabilitation activity is expected to occur over the life of the
operation or at the time of close down. The capitalised cost
is amortised over the life of the operation and the increase
in the net present value of the provision is included in
borrowing costs. Where there is a change in the expected
decommissioning and restoration costs, an adjustment is
recorded against the carrying value of the provision and
related assets, and the effect is then recognised in the
profit or loss on a prospective basis over the remaining life
of the operation. Provision for close down and restoration
costs do not include any additional obligations which
are expected to arise from future disturbance. The cost
estimates are reviewed and revised at the end of each
reporting period to reflect changes in conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, cost of conversion and other costs that
have been incurred in bringing the materials and supplies to
their present location and condition, is calculated using the
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.,e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

ETRGITHE (&)
HE (F)
FEBEREHEA

REMHNFRBRHEBAIREREER
ARAX ERITUKLEHOFRZE K
KEKME  TMREHAEREEERR
M % 5 S22 FRL

s

MESEEEMERB M BHRERE  UZE
BUHREBUININZEE (HNE)ET 2R
7 BERXZBEMZERNZNEEE (AZ
ERKEEBCHMEIERERRZEY)
FIfR -MEWPEE R UINEHEZEE
HERZEERZEXENHRE - LBHE
RAASNE ST B 2 IFERIEE TN EH B
o

REEKHEBELRREERAREEZER
ERNELHHEBRANER -

REIREMBREAME  AEEERE

BERABHRERPEERZEXRRE
RAKEZZ25E% (AVET) » MBRA R
FMXEBRFEFEFHERBRE  RIFH
AEXRIERE  AIRARHBEZEX-F
ELEZELZRE (NEF) REMEEKAR
ERANRGERD (RERE) -



FERERZERER AR
T -hFEH

.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E IR M R

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 H#E —T—HAF+_-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
other PRC state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be recognised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is recognised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the asset was
acquired. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are initially measured at fair value and all other financial
assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale
of a financial asset under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets represent held for trading financial assets.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They arise principally through the provision
of goods and services to customers (trade debtors), and
also incorporate other types of contractual monetary
asset. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these assets are carried at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
other reporting period subsequent to initial recognition (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEHFE (&)

Financial instruments (Continued) EHTHE(E)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued) MEEEREREE (Z)

Evidence of impairment could include: A B B

e  significant financial difficulty of the debtor; or o FEBMALRBREARBIAEE: 3

e  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; o  KREeHNNMREEBFNBHIAS 3
or

e granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s o MNEBALRMBERBEMEEH A
financial difficulty; or EHEBR ;%

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter e ERABBUREBEEIVKE
pbankruptcy or financial re-organisation. 48 -

For loans and receivables BEXRERER

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when WMEREBEEBERNEELRBE BleRn

there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and BaEPERBEER BEEEBSEE

is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying BEFAENLREREERMNXREBLIE ZH5TkK

amount and the present value of the estimated future cash KESRERERZEEAE -UKEE

flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. The CHEEMESBABEENR - MIABEE

carrying amount of financial asset is reduced through the BEAEDHEE A TTRE - E &K

use of an allowance account. When any part of financial A EE 7 B ERR PSS -

asset is determined as uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for the relevant financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried at
cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss is not reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
cost are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

3.
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—HE+ZA=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates or
significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or recognising
gains or losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities
are part of a group of financial liabilities which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management strategy;
or (iii) the financial liability contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, amounts due to related parties and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Fair value measurement

The Company uses Binomial Option Pricing Model to
measure the fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market. Difference may arise between
the fair value at initial recognition (which, in accordance
with HKFRS 13 and HKAS 39, is normally the transaction
price) and the amount determined at initial recognition using
the valuation technique. Any such differences is deferred
and not recognised in profit or loss. Amounts deferred
are recognised in profit or loss when pricing of equivalent
products or the underlying parameters become observable.
When the transaction is closed out, the amounts deferred
are released.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the services received are measured by reference to
the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values
of the services received are recognised as expenses
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve) when the Group obtains the goods or when
the counterparties render services, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Related parties

(@)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i

(ii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)

(i

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the reporting entity or to the parent of
the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Mining right

The mining right represents the right of Sifa Mining to
conduct mining activities in Huangshi City, Hubei Province,
the PRC. The mining right is amortised using the units of
production method based on the proven and probable
mineral reserves.

In 2014, the Group prepared documents as required and
submitted the application to the Ministry of Land and
Resources of the PRC(FE AR EFEE L &FR)
(“MLR”) for a mining exploitation permit. On 27th April,
2015, a permit was granted by MLR with a term of 2 years
from 25th September, 2014 to 25th September, 2016,
however, no exploitation activities were allowed but only
exploration activities.

In the opinion of the directors, Sifa Mining is still probable
in obtaining the mining exploration and exploitation permit
until all the proven and probable minerals have been mined.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Production capacity assumption

The mining operating permit under renewal limits the
production capacity to 100,000 tons per year. In the
opinion of the directors, the application for increasing the
production capacity is procedural and Sifa Mining should
be able to obtain a mining operating permit with higher
production capacity without significant cost. In case the
production capacity limit cannot be increased, the carrying
amount of the mining right may be impaired.

Reserves estimates

Reserves are estimates of the amount of products that can
be economically and legally extracted from the Group’s
properties. In order to calculate reserves, estimates and
assumptions are required about a range of geological,
technical and economic factors, including quantities,
grades, production techniques, recovery rates, production
costs, transport costs, commodity demand and commodity
prices.

Estimating the quantity and/or grade of reserves requires
the size, shape and depth of ore bodies or fields to be
determined by analysing geological data such as drilling
samples. This process may require complex and difficult
geological judgments and calculations to interpret the data.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Reserves estimates (Continued)

Because the economic assumptions used to estimate
reserves change from period to period, and because
additional geological data is generated during the course of
operations, estimates of reserves may change from period
to period. Changes in reported reserves may affect the
Group’s financial results and financial position in a number
of ways, including the following:

(i)  Asset carrying values may be affected due to changes
in estimated future cash flows.

(i)  Depreciation, depletion and amortisation charged to
profit or loss may change where such charges are
determined by the units of production basis, or where
the useful economic lives of assets change.

(i) Decommissioning, site restoration and environmental
provisions may change where changes in estimated
reserves affect expectations about the timing or cost of
these activities.

(iv) The carrying value of deferred tax may change as
a result of changes in the asset carrying values as
discussed above.

Provision for close down and restoration costs

The provision for close down and restoration costs is
estimated by management based on the current regulatory
requirements issued by the Hubei Provincial Peoples
Government. Provision set up, if any, is reviewed regularly
by management to ensure it properly reflects the obligation
arising from mining and exploration activities.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31st December,
2015, the carrying amount of trade and other receivables
was approximately HK$43,282,000, net of allowance
for doubtful debts of approximately HK$24,045,000
(2014: 14,919,000 net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$21,638,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes other borrowings as disclosed in Note 27 and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of their review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associate thereto. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
maintain its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuead)

The net debt to equity ratio at the end of reporting period

was as follows:

Debt
Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Equity

Net debt to equity ratio

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Loans and receivables (including
cash and cash equivalents)
Available-for-sale investments

— at cost

Held-for-trading investments

— at fair value

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities measured

at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss

5. EXEMERE (&)

BEMRZFREYERLTNT

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FABT
8E 14,754 15,498
HehREZEY (12,852) (71,264)
FEE 1,902 (55,766)
= 242,954 282,938
FEEEERLLE 0.78% N/AT i FB
E@mIT A
(a) =HITHEEF
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FiET
BEEE
B3R e BR K
(BIERERBRESEEY) 58,361 85,308
AfHERE
— AR 11,443 10,303
BIEEBERE
— B A¥E 2,111 =
BkEE
BREEKATTEZ
BixaE 39,739 44,080
BAFEFABRZ
BisaE 1,568 1,588
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6.

—HE+ZA=+—HLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@

(b)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

The directors considered that the carrying amounts
of the above financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost approximate to their fair
value, except for the available-for-sale investments
carried at cost less impairment because the range of
reasonable fair values estimates is so significant that its
fair value cannot be measured reliably (Note 19).

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial assets included available-
for-sale investments, held-for-trading investments,
trade and other receivables, amount due from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and cash and
cash equivalents. The Group’s major financial liabilities
included trade and other payables, amounts due to
related parties and a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary, warrants and other borrowings. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

6. $RIAE(£)

(a)

(b)

BEREE

EHTAEL (&)

EERALMIZBEKATE 2
EERVKABEHRAFEE ZRAFEME
MR AMBRIRENEZ AT
ERERIN RAAESERATEE
EBRAMBFUATSEHFEEAFE
(MI3E19) »

EABEREE

AEBZTEMBKEEREAIHEE
RE BEEERE BRESER
K b W AR X - FE U — A& & 7
—BIFEFIMRE 2 RIBERBE S IR
CEEY - AEETENBKEGER
FEIEE 5 BRI B A T BR K - &
NEEAT KRB AT —BIEE
%ll MERRER 2 FRIR - R E R H AR
B -ZEZemIACZFHE E/\‘XWEWH
ARE-FHAzZSeRmIAZAR
?EmiﬁHﬁA(M\ﬁSH e o ) 2 B )
EERBRERBESRR - T X7
/)Wfililz—rﬂ R WK -BEEEER
NEmZERRE  ARRKEEI AR
HER EE & TR BE o



The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation
of HK$. The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 4% (2014: 4%) appreciation and
depreciation in the functional currency of the
relevant subsidiaries (RMB) against the above
foreign currency. 4% (2014: 4%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of reporting
period for a 4% (2014: 4%) change in the
exchange rates. A strengthening of the functional
currency of the relevant subsidiaries against the
above foreign currency would give rise to the
following impact to the Group’s loss for the year,
or vice versa.

FERERZEREGR AR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
r e B AR AR M
mEMBRERME
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE—Z—HAF+-_A=+—HAILFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. E®WMIE(£&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) BHEEREEERKE (&)
(Continueq)
Market risk ™ i% B ke
(i)  Foreign currency risk (i) HEE B
Several subsidiaries of the Group are exposed to RNEBEZ KB A T M L INE &,
foreign currency risk primarily arising from foreign B EBRAIIERITER - H
currency bank deposits, other receivables and eI BE SR A R FEfTE SRR K
trade and other payables. H b AR
The carrying amounts of the Group’s significant HE2WMEBAERD  NEB LM
monetary assets and liabilities which are HEEERINEEEUINZ B
denominated in currencies other than the SHEZEREBEENBEZER
functional currency of the relevant group entities [EREONNE
at the end of reporting period are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=L BE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT THER FAT
HK$ BT 3,706 2,827 21 22

AEE X BB T2 EXRK
Rk - TRFINAKENEH
MEARNEEE (ARK)X
L SNEFEREZEA% (ZF
—POF:4%) 2K 4% (=
T—F:4%) REEEHINE
ERAEHRABEE 2T E-
FRESMEBEHRBEEZ
SNEFHEREBEE YNEER
HEERNERLI% (ZF—
F:4%) 2 BHABBE - H1E
RN B AR s
THE BHFEERELENTE
& RZIMAK-
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continueq)

Market risk (Continued)

(M)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

HK$

In the management’s opinion, the above
sensitivity analysis is not necessarily
representative of the inherent foreign currency risk
as the exposure at year end does not reflect the

exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is not exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to its fixed-rate borrowing
(see Note 27 for details) as they are carried at
amortised costs. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The Group is not exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk as the interest rate of borrowing is fixed
(Note 27).

6. $RIAE(£)

(b) BHEREBEZRERHE (&)

mIERE (&)
(i) SR (E)
2015 2014
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/

increase in loss

increase in loss

for the year for the year

FEER FEEE
CR2) /i CRA) /i
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
(148) (112)

148 112

(ii)

EEERS BRNFEMEHZ
2B 3 A 2 BR A 4R BT I 4 2 R
B M EAERE ST TR E
B A SN L o

T m g

mRESEE (FEREME27)
LA SR AN DI (B - SRR B B 78
PEEBEEREQXTFEMNER
i o AN 5% B3R By 3 4 ) 2R S b R
ReAMm EEEEEENER
- UeEEREREEHME
AAMERE g -

BRME B 2 F R & B E M R (Y
H27) BMAKEYEETFARE
BN ERER -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. E®WMIE(£&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(b) BHEREBEZRERHE (&)

(Continueq)
Market risk (Continued) mIERE (&)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIEEEE (E)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31st December, 2015, it is estimated that
a general increase/decrease of 50 basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s loss for the year and decrease/increase
accumulated losses by approximately HK$64,000
(2014: HK$356,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for the Group’s variable-rate bank balances
at the end of reporting. The analysis is prepared
assuming these financial instruments outstanding
at the end of reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. The 50 basis point increase/
decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual reporting
date. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2014.

RZZE—RF+=ZA=+—8"
M F R 28 58T #H50%F -
MATEEMEHRBEFTTE &
AAEEFEBEBERL S
wam R EESERD
hN#964,000%8 7T (= F — MU 4 -
356,000/ 70 ) °

PRGRESTEDRAREREZ
BRPHEER 27 BRITER A
BB T EETE - A Bz D AT TS
BREZENR2RPEE B HKRTT
FzemTAREEFEHEHEAK
17 50BF 2 L3R/ THRILE
BEHEE T —FHEHILHE
ZEEARENEESFE —F
—OE 2D TR M AREEE
i o
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. E®WMIE(£&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(b) BEREBEEZEEERHE (&)

(Continueq)
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade and other receivables, amount due from a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and bank
balances. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition
of trade customers. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

In addition to credit risk on trade and other receivables,
the Group is also exposed to concentration of
credit risk through advance to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of HK$3,586,000
(2014: HK$3,767,000). Because of its significance,
management has regular liaison with the counterparty
to understand their financial position and to identify
any early sign of potential problems. Should any
potential default risk arise, the Group’s management
will take prompt actions to safeguard the Group’s
assets.

In addition, the Group had concentration of credit
risk on its liquid funds as 98% (2014: 99%) of bank
balances were placed with five (2014: five) banks.
However, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

FERR

AEBZEERBRIEREEEWE
5 {6 R B LAt R MR BR SR R M — R BfY
J&E N A) — % FR P I M B AR 2 BRE K SR
THEH - BEERBEERER  UHE
ERAKEMAEZEERR-

LI U E 5 AR A0 K H 8 MK BR B
OB EERBRE—E2BEIEP
BEEZERNEEFN G -ARFES
RRE P XN B HIR IR 2 4 MR
MRz UAREBEFPZARE
BREPEEME KBRS A
SEERESEF ZMBRRETH
BEEMGE - AEERETGERER
o B o

BREWE SRR R EMEWERZE
RN REETRER—HAKBEA
A — B IEFE I AR SR 2 5X03,586,00074
7T (ZZF— P4 :3,767,000/8 7T) M
HHEEPEERBR - BREEEX
WERESTHEIIHFHENT
REMBRARENESELEREZ
TEJK o i EE B HARIE MR « BIA
SEEEEeARRDTERERE
BEE-

BEAh - A AEEI8% ( — T — M4 -
99% ) RITHFKEFHNER (ZF—KN
F R RT WAKEHRHEFR
BESEERR A ARXZHF
REREEFERBEFARIFERN
RZBRIT BRDES 2 EERRE
BR-
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. E®WMIE(£&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(b) BHEREBEZRERHE (&)

(Continueq)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity instruments quoted in the PRC stock exchange.
Management monitors the price risks and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arises.

The management considered that the Group’'s
exposure to the equity price risk on held-for-trading
investments is not significant. Accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the recognised of borrowings as well as the
cash flows from operating activities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its derivative and non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

H B B

AEBERE £ BRAE 7 AR K
EBRER BEEEATRART —HNKRE
MENEE I ER - AREHKER
REIEEPRRPERLFRZARE
WERATA-EREERERAR:
YR ERBEREELHRARE -

ERERSARERFEEERE K
EORERRYTEA B &S
HHEE DN -

REBETER

EERBETRERE NEEEZEY
HREEERRERNAAEEZER
HEGZRERRNSFEY WHE
RenBRBHZHE - BEEESER
BEZHERBERAANEE RS 2R

NS}
JILEE °

TREIAEBITERIFITERB A
BZRBEHNINHFE - ZRREM
BREZAURRESRERAEER]
REARECRFEHRE BEMER
RAGZBEERE-
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERMITH(Z&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BEEBEZEEERKE (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESRER (&
Liquidity table REELE
Weighted More than
average  Ondemand Morethan1 2 years but Total Carrying
effective orlessthan1 yearbutless lessthan5 undiscounted amount as at
interest rate year than 2 years years  cashflows  31.12.2015
s
—%-1f
=y

mEFE  RERE SMEE SRFE ARRRE  =t-Az
ERA= IME Diof SR5E REAR REE
%  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
TiEx TiEx TERL TER TR

2015 —E-1%
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ T BEE
Trade and other payables ERESRAREMERRR - 24,882 - - 24,882 24,882
Amounts due to related parties ERBEALZHRE
- a director -—ZEEZHE - 106 - - 106 106
Amount due to a non-controling ER—EHBAR—%
shareholder of a subsidiary FEHIERE 2B - 209 - - 209 209
Other borrowings HEifEE
- fixed rate -8 8.47 1,250 1,250 16,003 18,503 14,754
26,447 1,250 16,003 43,700 39,951
Weighted More than
average  Ondemand Morethan 1 2 years but Total Carrying
effective  orless than year but less  less than 5 undiscounted amount as at
interest rate 1year than 2 years years  cashflows  31.12.2014
i
—E-mE
+=A
MEFH REXE  SZMMER  SHFE REBBEE =182
BIRHE NS DPR2E DR6F MEAH FREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FET FET FET TET
2014 —E-mE
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3£ 74 Bt % & {&
Trade and other payables EREZRRREMEMNER - 25,010 - - 25,010 25,010
Amounts due to related parties EBEALZRE
- an associate ——RBEARZHE - 500 - - 500 500
- a director ——REFIFE - 2,667 - - 2,667 2,667
Amount due to a non-controling BN —MHBAR—%
shareholder of a subsidiary JEEEHIMRR 2 IR - 405 - - 405 405
Other borrowings Hinfe &
- fixed rate -8 8.47 16,811 - - 16,811 15,498

45,393 = = 45,393 44,080
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 7. AWEER W

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

(a) HEHADEHRAIZHS W5 -8

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets
and liabilities

The Group determines its operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-makers (the “CODM”) that are used to make
strategic decisions.

During the year ended 31st December, 2015, the
Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes
the operations in each of the Group’s reportable
segments:

e  Mobile phone business

e  Mining business

Corporate expenses, corporate assets and corporate
liabilities are not allocated to the reportable segments
as they are not included in the measure of the
segments’ profit or loss, segments’ assets and
segments’ liabilities that are used by the CODM for
assessment of segment performance.

# BERBEZHLE

AEBEARHELRBREZ LIRS
BARE([ETBEZERRE])EMN
ZmEBEREENE

RE-T—HF+-A=+—HILE
ER AREAEMETZES B
A SRR RER A RB
i B 7 B SR EUR L0 305 B B -
ESHDHWER - U THEB LA
B E AT RO B2 EE

s BIERER

s REEW®

MREESH CEEERCEXAR
WAERBFHATRZEERREFNGE D
RERERzo R ED DHEENR
DEHEBEAR RALLEERIEERA

Z2HmHEL -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 7. S EER R % (£)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) TE2HTHBRIZH 5z 1B
w BEREBMEZHF (&)

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2015

BE-_Z-AFf+=ZHB=+—H1L

FE
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
Be
BIEEK REER et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT THER THEx
Reportable segment revenue REINREFH) ] 28
from external customers s 0 157,903 - 157,903
Reportable segment loss A 2o IPEE (8,087) (3,608) (11,695)
Depreciation and amortisation T8 M 5 386 369 755
Impairment loss recognised in  BLIEUE 5 K& H fh fE Uk
respect of trade and other IR REEE
receivables 2,733 34 2,767
Write down of inventories 7 & #UR 1,171 = 1,171
Recovery of write down of 5 & #Mos =
inventories (640) - (640)
Write-back of rebate payables 1 [3l f& {<f [21 F1 B8R 7% (1,489) = (1,489)
Reportable segment assets AIZ2HoHEE 52,053 281,977 334,030
Reportable segment liabilities AZmoHBeE (4,723) (98,612) (103,335)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 7. 9 ZBEE R Wz (&)
(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) TE2HTHBRIZH 5z 1B
w BEREBMEZHF (&)

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

2015
HK$’000
TER
Revenue W 2=
Reportable segment revenue and A2 B E KR A W
consolidated revenue 157,903
Loss before income tax MRATS B ATE 1B
Reportable segment loss A 2o IEE (11,695)
Expenses used in the development of RARFREB B IR 2 M
mobile games (32)
Fair value loss on held-for-trading investments BIEEBEREZ A FEERE (621)
Interest income F B U A 1,007
Miscellaneous income I A 773
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HAMEERERRZBBEERE
available-for-sale investments (6,234)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in BE—EHE A EER
respect of an associate HEEE 45
Staff costs (including directors’ remunerations) BINRA (BIEESEHH) (5,610)
Corporate expenses PEZT (2,992)
Share of results of associates DG E RN R 2 EE (1,986)
Finance costs B & AN (1,302)

Consolidated loss before income tax

BRPTISBLRTAR & B 1R

(28,647)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 7. S EER R % (£)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) TZHESTHBRITZHSH W 1B
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets = BEREBEZHE (&)
and liabilities (Continued)

2015
HK$’000
FET
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets A2WmoHEE 334,030
Unallocated corporate assets RO EEE
- Investments in associates —BERNRZEE 2,072
— Available-for-sale investments —AHEERE 11,443
— Club memberships —SMeiE 1,096
— Held-for-trading investments —FHEEEKRE 2,111
— Cash and cash equivalents - BekREEEY 3,503
— Others —E A 579
Consolidated total assets HEEERE 354,834
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities AZmoHaE 103,335
Unallocated corporate liabilities R @Em% afE
— Tax payables — B TIE 4,574
— Warrants — R REE 1,568
— Others —E A 2,403
Consolidated total liabilities REBERRE 111,880
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 7. S EER R % (£)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets
and liabilities (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2014

(a) HEHADEHRAIZHS W5 -8
# BEREBEZHE (&)

BHE_T-NE+_A=1t—HILF

J‘-EF
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
X!
BEED R @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
Reportable segment revenue RENNAEFP R A 2
from external customers pas & 57,587 - 57,587
Reportable segment loss A 2w IEE (9,518) (4,231) (13,749)
Write-off of plant and equipment  #fl 4B = & &% & 295 - 295
Depreciation and amortisation 37 & & # §4 1,132 493 1,625
Impairment loss recognised in  FLEE M & HER
respect of plant and BIEEE
equipment 991 - 991
Write down of inventories IEN=E 298 - 298
Recovery of write down of 17 & R =
inventories (628) - (628)
Reportable segment assets A2/ EE 88,177 297,291 385,468
Additions to non-current assets JFEREBEERE 622 - 622
Reportable segment liabilities AE®ROHEE (7,681) (101,357) (109,038)
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7.

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

Revenue

Reportable segment revenue and

consolidated revenue

Loss before income tax

Reportable segment loss

Expenses used in the development of

mobile games
Interest income
Miscellaneous income
Staff costs

(including directors’ remunerations)

Corporate expenses
Share of results of associates
Finance costs

Consolidated loss before income tax

Assets

Reportable segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets
— Investments in associates

— Available-for-sale investments

— Club memberships

— Cash and cash equivalents

— Others

Consolidated total assets

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 7. D &R R k3% (&)

(a) HEHADEHRAIZHS W5 -8

# BEREBEZHE (&)

2014
HK$’'000
FAT
W =
A 2| EUE MR A W
57,587
BRETEBHATERE
A2 Mo EPEIE (18,749)
ArAEve B RAx
(8,115)
B U A 2,432
HIEUA 712
8 T KA
(BREEFHH) (5,493)
TEIH (3,481)
DIhEE AR L EE (1,369)
& A (1,323)
BRATS R ATER & B8 (30,386)
BE
A2/ HBEE 385,468
RO EEE
—HERR A 3,411
—AHEERE 10,303
— ST 1,106
—-ReEKBEEEY 1,694
—Hfb 372
REEERE 402,354
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SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 7. D &R R k3% (&)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

(b)

(c)

(d)

(a) HEHADEHRAIZHS W5 -8

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

# BEREBEZHE (&)

2014
HK$’000
FHET
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities AE2WmaHBeE 109,038
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEGEBE
— Tax payables —ERTHIE 4,574
- Warrants — R HEE 1,688
- Others —H At 4,216
Consolidated total liabilities REBERE 119,416
Geographical information (b) 1 &
During 2015 and 2014, the Group's operations and RZE-—RAFR-_FT—NF K

non-current assets are situated in the PRC in which all
of its revenue was derived.

Information about major customer

In 2015, revenues from two customers in the
mobile phone business of the Group amounted to
HK$57,688,000 and HK$47,557,000 respectively,
each of which represent 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue (2014: no customer with whom transactions

have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue).

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable or received for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net
of discounts and sales related taxes.

KEZXBRIERBEEAMR
FEMERRaEERERE-

(c) BEEETEFEFZEH

R-ZE—AF AEEEHE
EEBMEREFHK=ES B A
57,688,000/% Jt K& 47,557,000/
T BEARNEBEIRZE10%K A £
(ZE—NFE  TEEFZRS
EASEBER=EBIE10%)

(d) W

Watzo kBB R E 2R FE
AFECEARERBBAETREE
HE MRk RS EREE R
ZFIE - XEMBRITI R HE A
RATIE
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8.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
club memberships

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
available-for-sale investments

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables

Exchange loss

Fair value loss on held-for-trading
investments

Loss on write-off of plant and equipment

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of an associate

Write-back of rebate payables

FINANCE COSTS

Interests on other borrowings wholly
repayable within five years

8. HitlhzmRER

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
HEMEEERRESE
- (110)
B E R wER
B R - (991)
HAHEEERERR
BEEE (6,234) -
FEREU B 5 BR 30 I E fh FE UL
R ER 2 REEE (2,767) -
i i EiE (14) (24)
BEEBEREZATEERE
(621) -
hiE B R 2 B R - (295)
BE—RHBE AR BERZ
BEEE 45 -
(5] FE < B F0 BR 3K 1,489 -
(8,102) (1,420)
9. WMERK
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FH&IT
BRAFRNBHEEZ
HiEERE 1,302 1,323




FEREZERER AR
—Z-hFEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HZE =

0. INCOME TAX

Fortune (Shanghai) International Trading Co., Ltd (“Fortune
Shanghai”), L8 ZEEREZERAG, HKEMEREBA
ZEBBR AT (“Zhuhai Reminda”) and & LB EGR A
a] (“Sifa Mining”) were established in the PRC and subject
to the EIT rate of 25% (2014: 25%).

No provision for income tax has been made as the Group
did not have any estimated assessable profits during the
year (2014: Nil).

SREMBHRRME

—HE+ZA=t+—HIFE

10. FT 8%

EL(J:/E)I["T?T%%BE’ATUEL
£8]) EE8EEBEBREZERA
KEMBBEBAZEBRA T(Hﬂi
HERE] ) REARERERRAR
(4B ) NP BRI WEK25%

E— P04 : 25% ) Z D E TS BB = 40
i o

5 A A 52 R
BOsA - B R AT EB R (— T
F M) o

The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the AEEZEHRAZEE2EBARZGHT
loss before income tax per the consolidated statement of SHAEEYEERANT
comprehensive income as follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Loss before income tax bR ET1S LA BT 18 (28,647) (30,386)
Tax credit at the domestic income tax AR FT1S B E25%
rate of 25% (2014: 25%) (Note) —E—F:25%)
FEHREERS (M) (7,162) (7,597)
Tax effect of share of results of DIHEERR ZEE 2
associates MB e 328 226
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for 7~ B] F1 74 B % 2 T 75 52 &
tax purpose 3,173 3,049
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ~ BAERH WA Z FHIEF L
purpose (733) (665)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERT IS E LB A H B
and utilisation of tax losses and EE RN ERERE 2
deductible temporary differences MB 2 2,679 4,226
Effect of different tax rates of group Hiha AR 2 E s 5B
entities operating in other jurisdictions ERTRAMEZZE 1,715 761

Income tax for the year

FEAEH
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10.

INCOME TAX (Continued)

At the end of reporting period, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$145,312,000
(2014: HK$156,531,000) available for offset against future
profits. The tax losses are subject to the final assessment
by the tax authorities in the respective jurisdictions where
the tax losses arising from. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the estimated unused tax losses
due to unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$22,602,000 (2014: HK$41,044,000) that may be
carried forward for a period of five years from their
respective year of origination. The remaining unrecognised
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of reporting period, the Group also had
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$9,094,000 (2014: HK$6,558,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to these deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Note: The domestic income tax rate represents the EIT rate where
the Group’s operations are substantially based.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

10. FREH (&)

RERPLEER - AEE G ATRE
EIMRR G F < @RS A HEEIR
#) /145,312,000 0 (—ZF — 0 F -
156,531,000/ 7T ) - BB E BBFEEH
HEENEBRAEEN R BEEER
%R o B P B VETE B R TOE B RR - 8
WHEN G 2H RS A 2B IEEIBRE
REEHBEE TAARERBBEBRZ
B8 %) 522,602,000 70 (—F — I F:
41,044,000 7T) - AIBEA S FELRLAEH
FAF o F T &9 R WERR B TR B 18 B 0] 4% PR HR
A o

RERMAEZR AEBTAANNE
B 2 B0 #99,094,0008 L (Z T — W F -
6,558,000/ 7T ) ° B K K A] B B 4 Al 410
ME R ANEKEERT SN - &
MZEANPESEZERRELEHIEE
Efio

BYRE: AHATIS AR IR AN SR KAl D X558
Bz EEMEHRBE-
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11. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax is arriving at

after charging/(crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration
Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses
Write down of inventories
Recovery of write down of inventories
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Staff costs
— directors’ emoluments (Note 12)
— salaries and allowances for
other staff
— retirement benefit scheme
contribution (excluding directors)

and after crediting:

Service income from provision of
logistics and promotion services

Interest income

Government grants

SREMBHRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE —T—HAF+_-_A=+—HI-FE

M. BRFTEHAER

B P15 75 A1 5 18

Bk (5FA)

ZE BT &
ERRR/AIZFERA

7 & MR
7 & R B
W R iRt 2 T
B IR A
—EBEMS (HE12)
- HiETHE R
2 Ak
—RIREFIET I K
(TREESE)

kBFA:

REVMREREERKZ
AR# U A

R KA

BT 4 Bh

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
956 945
152,509 49,027
1,171 298
(640) (628)
783 1,657
4,825 5,006
8,180 15,113
1,087 3,269
14,092 23,388
309 2,301
1,007 2,432
37 33
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12.EE &
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2014: FRNENKERN TR (ZE—POE: X
six) directors during the year were as follows: M)BEEEaZME0T:

Lau Chang Wong Lit

Siu Ying Luo Law  Wing Seng, Chor,
(“Mr. Lau”) Xi Zhi  Chun Kwan Victor Alexis Wang Yu Total

g E

(T8%xl) EB2 B 153 B4 IR ag

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’0‘00
TATL TEL TAL TATL TEL TR TATL

2015 -2-%f
Fees ik - - 50 100 100 - 250
Salaries and allowances o Rz 3,856 178 - - - 484 4,518
Retirement benefit scheme contribution 3R k48 # 3+ &1 £ 3 3 16 - - - 38 57
Total emoluments Heags 3,859 194 50 100 100 522 4,825

2014 —T-RE
Fees e - - 50 100 100 - 250
Salaries and allowances e REs 3,989 180 - - - 529 4698
Retirement benefit scheme contribution 3R /18 #3H &l £ 3 3 16 - - - 39 58
Total emoluments Heem 3,992 196 50 100 100 568 5,006

13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEM £
Out of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in NEBRUSGSHFA TR -EFMmAG (=
the Group, two (2014: two) were directors of the Company T—OF W) BAAREE HMEH
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in Note REXKHFI2HEEZERAN BT =ML
12 above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2014: —E—F =) AT ZBE T

three) individuals were as follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET
Salaries and allowances e KoEEL 1,293 1,234
Retirement benefit scheme contribution R K4& | 5T 2 3¢ 54 50

1,347 1,284
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14.

15.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE —T—HAF+_-_A=+—HI-FE

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following band:

Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T LA A

None of the five highest paid individuals waived any
emoluments in current and prior years.

During the years ended 31st December, 2015 and 2014,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals, including directors, as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during current and prior
years, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of
reporting period (2014: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of loss per share for the year is based on
the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$23,118,000 (2014: loss of HK$24,482,000) and the
weighted average number of 830,753,853 shares in issue
during the year (2014: 826,871,387 shares in issue).

No diluted loss per share is presented as the effect of all
potential ordinary shares is anti-dilutive for the years ended
31st December, 2015 and 2014.

13. EEME (&)

ZEREZMENFTIEE:

2015 2014
Number of Number of
employees employees

EE®AR EE#HE
3 3

RAFEREFA AUKEHALHE
MEWBEAHE -

BE-_ZT—AFk-FT-HFE+=A
“t-HLEFE - AKERERNRIUES
HAL (BREF)XNEAME  FRE
BREMASEMAREEEZ M RE
RBERRE -

14. RE

RAFELBEFERN S8R HIR
B B2HmEEE R AR INE UK A
BE(ZT—MEFE &) -

15. BRE#E

FRERBEEIIBEBEFARAREEAZ
JE {5 /&5 $823,118,00058 7T ( — Z — P 4 :
&5 824,482,000 L) R F R E B 17D
830,753,853k 2 MEFHH (=ZF — MW
F : 826,871,387 B BT M )T E -

BERBE_F-AFK-_F-—WF+-AH
ST BHUEFEZMAEBELBERGAR
BEUE WUE2)ESRETER-
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16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. j‘ﬂ,ﬁ%&%’ﬁ{ﬁ
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction

improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total

&
HEXE  HERRAE RE EREIE h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FER FAR FET

COST BA

At 1st January, 2014 RZZ-m§—-R—H 9,700 4,271 5,054 6,958 25,983
Exchange adjustments LS (210) (73) (80) (163) (526)
Additions Ayl 381 187 67 - 635
Write-off s (565) (242) - - (807)
At 31st December, 2014 RZZE-mE+=A=+—-A 9,306 4,143 5,041 6,795 25,285
Exchange adjustments R AR (421) (133) (161) (326) (1,041)
Additions A - 15 - - 15
Write-off ik - (298) - - (298)
At 31st December, 2015 RZZ-h%+=-A=1+-AH 8,885 3,727 4,880 6,469 23,961

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND RIRERAE

IMPAIRMENT

At 1st January, 2014 R-E-N&-A—-AH 5,202 2,941 3,921 - 12,064
Exchange adjustments LS (117) (50) (59) - (226)
Provided for the year FERE 638 327 692 - 1,657
Impairment loss REBR 593 398 - - 991
Eliminated on write-off WiREER (270) (242) - - (512)
At 31st December, 2014 RZE-ME+=A=+—-A 6,046 3,374 4,554 - 13,974
Exchange adjustments EHHE (274) (103) (154) - (531)
Provided for the year FERE 246 125 412 - 783
Eliminated on write-off W ER - (298) - - (298)
At 31st December, 2015 RZZE-RE+ZA=1+—-A 6,018 3,098 4,812 - 13,928
CARRYING VALUE BHE

At 31st December, 2015 RZZ-RE+=A=1+—-AH 2,867 629 68 6,469 10,033
At 31st December, 2014 RZZ-ME+=-A=+—-A 3,260 769 487 6,795 11,311
In 2014, leasehold improvements and furniture, fixtures R E SEAEEBEHE ELK
and equ!pment relatlﬁg to mobile phone business of the THERBUREM EEREED S
Group with total carrying amount of HK$991,000 were fully SHU{E - H BE F 4838 5001 0003 7T + It T3k

impaired after considering the continuing increasing losses
in the business segment by the directors of the Group. The
impairment loss of HK$991,000 was recognised in other
gains and losses after comparing the carrying amount of
these items with their fair value less cost of disposal.

EEEBEFLERZEB D B2 EIBRENY
MmEEL CFhERZEEE 2 FESEHR
A ER T EK AR - 991,0007 7T 2 BE
BIEDEE MRS R EIBRER-

In 2015, no provision for impairment in respect of plant and RZF—HF  BERBE KRR
equipment was recognised. BERE-
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE —T—HAF+_-_A=+—HI-FE

17. MINING RIGHT 17. FRIERE
HK$’000
FHET
COST RRA
At 1st January, 2014 R-ZE—WmF—HA—H 471,040
Exchange adjustments bE 5 38 & (11,040)
At 31st December, 2014 RZE—MF+=ZA=+—H 460,000
Exchange adjustments bE 5 % (22,080)
At 31st December, 2015 RZE—hF+=A=+—H 437,920
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND 2t BHEREE
IMPAIRMENT

At 1st January, 2014 R-ZZE—mF—H—H 184,555
Exchange adjustments b 5 P& (4,326)
At 31st December, 2014 AZE—NUF+=—A=+—H 180,229
Exchange adjustments b 5 (8,651)
At 31st December, 2015 RZE—hF+—H=+—H 171,578
CARRYING VALUE SREE
At 31st December, 2015 AZE—RF+-A=+—H 266,342
At 31st December, 2014 RZE—MF+=ZA=+—H 279,771
The mining right represents the right of Sifa Mining to R EENPBRIEE =A™
conduct mining activities in Huangshi City, Hubei Province, ETEE SN -FEEEDEND
the PRC. The mining right is amortised using the units of R EE T REERENEEAEIEAS
production method based on the proven and probable (=

mineral reserves.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 EZ—F

—HE+ZA=+—HLFE

17. MINING RIGHT (Continued)

(i)

Mining exploitation permit

After the expiration of a 5-year mining exploitation
permit on 25th September, 2012, Sifa Mining obtained
a renewed mining operating permit for 2 years (the
“2-year Permit 2012-2014") from the Ministry of Land
and Resources of the PRC (FF#E AR KM E B + &R
#B) (“MLR"), under which Sifa Mining was allowed to
carry out exploration activities only, but not exploitation
activities. The 2-year Permit 2012-2014 was expired
on 25th September, 2014.

During the year 2014, the Group prepared documents
as required and submitted the application to MLR
to obtain a mining exploitation permit. In return, a
renewed permit was granted by MLR on 27th April,
2015 for a term of 2 years from 25th September, 2014
to 25th September, 2016 (the “2-year Permit 2014-
2016").
2-year Permit 2014-2016 are the same as the 2-year

Permit 2012-2014, no exploitation activities were

However, the terms and conditions of the

allowed but only exploration activities.

The directors are of the opinion that the Group is still
probable in obtaining the mining exploitation permit in
the next year renewal. Nevertheless, the directors are
also exploring all commercially viable opportunities to
maximise the return from this investment, including

finding potential buyers.

17. RIERE (&)

(M)

2

AFHRBHAIR-_TE—ZFNA
“t+RHBERE BEEECEEGH
FEAREZMBEALERIS ([BLE
TRER ) R A M F R BB R A
B ZE—ZFEZ_F—NFWFH
AL R AR TR R (R T )
FEmIERAREH — T ——FE_F
—EMFRFAER S —NF I
B-+HBEmMe

NCE-MFER AEERUEGER
EXHWERTELEERE ARG

MR MELERFTER-F
—hFMA -+t EtBEREEEFA
H-FT-NFNLA-TRAHE=F
—ANFENAZTHEEREME ([ZF

_@¢1—¥ NEMEHRFA]) o
I —HEE_T-RFEMF

Aﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁhﬁﬁ_g—_iii
T-NEMFEHFAER BTEE
THREE HERAETERES

EERR/AKEDARIGEETRER
FRFESIRIERT Al - R - EFMEERE
FIBEELAIITHEE  LIEZRE
RE&EALR BESRELEER-
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HZE =
17. MINING RIGHT (Continued)

(i) Assessment of impairment

The directors have carefully reviewed the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit of the mining
business (the “CGU”) to which the mining right is
allocated. The directors determined the recoverable
amount of the CGU was not able to be measured
by a fair value less cost of disposal using the market
approach method as no sufficient and reliable market
information can be obtained. In 2014, the recoverable
amount of the CGU was determined by the value in
use calculation. Since the management has changed
their intentions by also considering the possible
disposal of the CGU in current year, the recoverable
amount of the CGU was then determined by a fair
value less cost of disposal as at 31st December, 2015
using the income approach method. The recoverable
amount of the CGU was classified as level 3 in the
fair value hierarchy. The key assumptions adopted
in the income approach method (2014: value in
use calculation) relate to the renewal of a mining
exploitation permit, estimated reserves, estimated
productivity and the estimated prices of mineral
resources. The calculation uses cash flow projections
with certain key parameters as below:

BRI X (1K)
BRI (FiAl)

Discount rate (post-tax)
Discount rate (pre-tax)

Growth rate 18 5 &
Gross profit ratio E R =

Based on the above review, the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit of the mining
business approximates to its carrying value as at
31st December, 2015. Directors considered that no
impairment loss has to be recognised for the year.

At 31st December, 2015, 100,000 tons (2014:
100,000 tons) minerals included in the underlying
reserves were pledged to the other borrowings (Note
27).

E TR M R

—HE+ZA=t+—HIFE

17. RIERE (&)

(i)

a8 FF

EECYESREBERENRBESLR
cEFEBEM([BeEEEM])MA
WECEETFHER EEEH TR
%iﬁ@%ﬂ%@@ﬁxﬂﬁﬁ%%
NAFERDEREATE  EAKEE
ESFTRERASHMEER KT
—OF REEEFELMNATKE LR
NERABEAEETE -AREEER
REENEREHERSEEEN
MXBEEER ReELABEURZT
—hRF+ - A=+t—H0J ke e
EHig Ty ARACEZ AT ER H &K
AEF - BeEABMNMTKRE S
DEENFEBRE=-F - WAL (=
f-@i ATEEREE) KB ZE
EHEETEREEREDERTAIE
%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi,ﬁﬁiﬁﬂ&ﬁ
uﬂET& @ EFRR S RENE

ETEEA=280T:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET &L
17.1% n/a &
n/a & A 20.3%
3.0% 3.0%
52.4% 49.3%

AR LT REXBREELE
Lz RBEFREN_FT—HF
tT_A=+t—HZEEEHRE-BF
RRBEARNFAERRERSR-

R-E—FAFE+—_A=+—8" BH
&2 1 A100,0000F ( == — PO 4F :
100,000M8) IBEEEAHMEE 21K
1 (M sE27) ©
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. (B NB 21/ E
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FET
Cost of investments in unlisted RIELETBE QA2
associates & & KA 6,543 5,881
Share of post-acquisition reserves FEAE W B2 R (3,606) (1,620)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 A& (53) 7
2,884 4,268
Less: allowance for impairment R E R (812) (857)
2,072 3,411
Particulars of the associates as at 31st December, 2015 i £¢&_2 mE+=—A=+—
and 2014 are set out in Note 40. H 2B E N TSN 540
Summarised financial information in respect of the N E—FREF - FT—NNE+_F=+—
associates held by the Group as at 31st December, 2015 H AREFEMREHES AT ZHBEEREBE
and 2014 are as below:— Hola
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT TAET

Loss and total comprehensive income BEREERSEE (8,973) (2,738)
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Unlisted equity investments, at cost
(Note a)
Unlisted fund investment, at cost

Less: allowance for impairment

Note a:

Note b:

(FizFa)

R E R

FELEMBARE  HRA

FLMESKRE BKAK
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e IRk MEE
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE —T—HAF+_-_A=+—HI-FE
19. IHERE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
15,297 10,303
2,380 -
17,677 10,303
(6,234) -
11,443 10,303

Included in the balance is a HK$10,234,000 (2014:
HK$10,234,000), representing 6.31% (2014: 4.84%)
equity interest in an unlisted private company, in which,
through its subsidiary, engaged in developing mobile
devices and operating system, manufacturing and
distribution of mobile devices.

The investments in unlisted equity securities and unlisted
fund investment are measured at cost less impairment
at the end of reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair values estimates is so significant that the
directors of the Group are of the opinion that fair value of
the investments cannot be measured reliably.

The Group does not intend to dispose of the investments
in unlisted equity securities in the near future.

Bffta :

BiFtp

AR B $E10,284,0008 L (= F
— P4 :10,234,000% ) * B —fH
FELEMAEQRIBREZ631% (ZF
—POF :4.84%)  ZARIEBENE
NN ERERHREREERR
BUERDHERE R

FLETERABARERFFLTESR
BTGB RE RN BENE
FRRRBEAGEQTFEMFTHEBA .
AEBEFRREEAUEMAERS
BREZRFE-

REBETHNERAHEIE ETRAE
BHRE -
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20. CLUB MEMBERSHIPS 20. EFTEE
HK$'000
FHET
COST Jo# N
At 1st January, 2014 RZZE—mF—HA—H 1,397
Exchange adjustments bE 5 38 & (5)
At 31st December, 2014 RZZE-—MF+_A=+—H 1,392
Exchange adjustments PE W FE B (10)
At 31st December, 2015 RZZE-—AF+—A=+—H 1,382
IMPAIRMENT R
At 1st January, 2014 RZE—mF—H—H 176
Impairment loss recognised for the year FEERZREEE 110
At 31st December, 2014 and 31st December, 2015 RZE—MF+_A=+—HERK
—E—hAF+=ZA=+—H 286
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 31st December, 2015 RZE—hF+—H=+—H 1,096
At 31st December, 2014 RZE—MF+=_A=+—H 1,106
Club memberships are stated at cost less any identified @SSR AR TR 2 B EEIEY
impairment loss. For the purpose of impairment testing BEofgBlemefEs R RER kb4
on club memberships, the recoverable amount has been BATEBEEKRAET MBI —_Fhmi%
determined based on fair value less costs to sell which BRHEERAK-

represents the second-hand market price less cost of
disposal.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE —T—HAF+_-_A=+—HI-FE

21. INVENTORIES 1. 5
Inventories comprise finished goods in: FEAIERAR S :
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FHET
Mobile phones business BE)EEETE 796 5,220
Mining business RUEET 1,221 1,282
2,017 6,502
Included in the cost of inventories recognised as expense HE-_Z—RAF+-_A=+—HIEFEZ
for the year ended 31st December, 2015 were write down CHERAE Y ZFERADIEBEESR A
of inventories with an aggregate balance of HK$1,171,000 1,171,000yt ( —ZZ — M 4F : 298,000/
(2014: HK$298,000), and recovery of write down of TC) ZTFEMUR - LA R A r] IR R E 15N
inventories of HK$640,000 (2014: HK$628,000) which was m# e 2 77 EH#U 640,000 T ( ZZ—Y
caused by the increase in the net realisable value. £ 1 628,000/ 7T ) ©
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22, W E 5 IR ;X & H 4t FE UK BR =X
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FAT
Trade receivables JE W E 5 IR K 53,748 19,981
Less: accumulated allowance W BET B (18,281) (18,458)
35,467 1,523
Value-added-tax receivables JE WL E R 149 427
Prepayments to suppliers TEAST L FE P 3R IE 880 2,850
Other receivables and deposits Hith e W BR R M iR 6 12,550 13,299
Less: accumulated allowance B RET R (5,764) (3,180)
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 R K

E {th i UG BR X 43,282 14,919
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 2 EWEBESZETFEEMEIRER
(%)

The Group generally requests for full prepayment from its REFB-REXKEFIRZFENZEHIK

trade customers but it also allows certain trade customers BE-BINGETFETESIREP=1TZ2NT

a credit period of 30 to 90 days. The following is an aged Az EEH -RERBLEER 2 BKE

analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance) presented SEF (BPHBEE)EZXZEGHEY 2
based on the invoice date at the end of reporting period: BRER DT -

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

0 to 30 days £Ex=+H 34,847 240

31 to 90 days =t+—=N1+H 482 1,205

91 to 365 days nt+—==B+HH 138 43

Over 365 days BBl =—ATHH - 35

35,467 1,523

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses ENTRHEPR AEBEFHEE

the potential customer’s credit quality and defines its EEZEEEEE REATEERE T

credit limits. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed Hiei I FEE2RE-REAEFER

periodically. Majority of the trade receivables that are neither W=ET i KoK BEATTABE

past due nor impaired have no default payment history ZEWE SEFIEE AR ZRE

and good credit rating under the Group’s internal credit AR GFo

assessment.
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continuead) 22.

The Group does not hold any collateral over its trade
debts. The following is an aged analysis of the carrying
amounts of trade debts that were past due at the end of
reporting period but for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss because management are of the opinion
that the fundamental credit quality of the customers has not

deteriorated:
Less than 90 days past due wmEI LR+ B
Over 90 days but less than 365 days BEAER B LT H
past due BLR=A-+HAB
Over 365 days past due BB =-A~TAHH

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade and other receivables

Balance at beginning of year FHEE

Exchange adjustments I W 8 &

Impairment losses recognised FRBERZABERERE
during the year

Amounts written off as uncollectible EAERWRE 2 M8

Balance at end of year FIR KR

The Group recognised impairment loss on individual
assessment based on the accounting policy stated in
Note 3.

FE U B 5 MR R R H fth 8 I RR K
(#&)

AEBEVTEREZEFFETMNERR-
UTARERNEEACBREREEE
RAREPZEAREEERI RBILMER
AEBEYEFEHRESEREBEZESER
ZRREERRE DT :

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
1,063 1,315
138 43

- 35

1,201 1,393

B E K E 5 IR R R it Wk 5 R AR A%
HZEE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET F&T
21,638 22,081
(360) (185)
2,767 =
- (258)
24,045 21,638

A& BAR IR I FESPT Al 2 & R IR FE AR (A
RIRF b 2 B R 1A -
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22 fE WE 5 BB Eﬂﬂ@ 1y BE =k
(4&)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in BRI EWE SRR E M FE KR R
respect of trade and other receivables (Continued) HEZEE (Z)
Included in the above allowance for doubtful debts in FEWE SRA N EMERIRRZ R
respect of trade and other receivables is a provision REREATEHMEBERREZERE S E
for individually impaired trade and other receivables of 2 EH Ath fE U BR B 2 B 24,045,000 T
HK$24,045,000 (2014:HK$21,638,000) with a carrying —Z — U4 :21,638,000/8 7T) * BEE A
amount before provision of HK$24,045,000 (2014: AR 18 524,045,000 0 ( — & — 04 ¢
HK$21,638,000). 21,638,000/ 7T ) °
The individually impaired trade and other receivables relate B E R E 2 FE U E 5 BR 3 R HL At FE U AR
to debtors that were in financial difficulties or were in default A N R Tk D% N S RN
in both interest and/or principal payments and only a SRNFZEHE A FBEE ] Y B fE U BR 70
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. Z— B
23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO NON-CONTROLLING 23. FEWL "FEASFT B D Bl FEEHI R R
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES Z g
The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on R BEIRE T E B MARERERE-
demand.
24. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 24, HEEERE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FET
Equity investments listed in PRC, PR ETZRAIEE -
at fair value: BAFIE 2,111 -
The listed equity investments are classified within level 1 of FTRAKEDEALATFEERNE —

the fair value hierarchy. [Ze
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at banks earns interest at floating bank deposit rates.

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB and HK$, which are the functional
currencies of the relevant entities of the Group. Included in
cash and cash equivalents at 31st December, 2015 are the
amounts in RMB of approximately RMB7,856,000 in form of
cash on hand and demand deposits (2014: approximately
RMB13,657,000 in form of cash on hand and demand
deposits and approximately RMB42,000,000 in form of
short term highly liquid investments). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
The following is an aged analysis of the trade payables

presented based on the invoice date at the end of reporting
period:

Trade payables: FERE SRR
0 to 30 days TE=+H

31 to 90 days =1+ —ZF HamE
Over 90 days @i+ A
Rebates payable FEAST B FRIB
Prepayments from customers BEEMNRIE

Other payables and accruals

25.

26.

Hit AR R B &S

RERREEEY
RITRIRF B RITF A EHIF & -

AEBZREMRSEEBYWETEULRE
EEMERIEEBARE KRBT
BE-R-_FE—AF+-_A=+—H8 K&
MREEEYMBREAARETEZFHER
& ROE BT 8 AR #7,856,0007T (=
T-NF FHEHASRIHGERHARE
13,657,000t M Him RBIHIRENAR
#42,000,00070) - AR EEBHILBRA
HiEH-

BN E 5 R R HE b RR X

REGMEERZRNESERFIZERA
M2 ZREDTT

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
89 504
314 865
271 276
674 1,645

- 1,494

12 70
24,196 21,871
24,882 25,080
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27. OTHER BORROWINGS

Secured other borrowings EEHEMEE
- repayable within one year —BR—FR

At the end of reporting period, the Group’s other
borrowings were pledged by 100,000 (2014: 100,000)
tons of minerals reserve, carrying at a fixed interest rate of
8.47% (2014: 8.47%) per annum and repayable within three
years (2014: within one year).

At 31st December, 2015 and 2014, the Group did not have
any banking facilities.

28. SHARE CAPITAL

&

— repayable after one year — AR —F1& 1,%?

7. HtefE &
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TET
= 15,498
14,754 -
14,754 15,498

RERPLEER AEBHMBEENU
100,000M8 ( —Z—P94F : 100,000M8 ) & &
FEEERM  REE FE8.47% ( —%—m
F847% )T B AR =ZFRN(ZF—
F—FR)EE-

R-B-RER-F-MFT-A=+—
B A A RITRA -

Authorised EERK
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREE0108 T LRk
At beginning of year N
Increased in number of authorised VETE BRI

ordinary shares
At end of year NS
Issued and fully paid BEROTRBERABA
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREE010B T .2 LRk
At beginning of year REA)

Share options exercised
Warrants exercised

At end of year

AT E
B R E

RER

28. B &
Number of
ordinary shares Share capital
EERYE R
2015 2014 2015 2014
’000 '000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tk T TER TET
1,000,000 1,000,000 100,000 100,000
1,000,000 - 100,000 -
2,000,000 1,000,000 200,000 100,000
829,063 823,163 82,906 82,316
1,000 4,700 100 470
2,000 1,200 200 120
832,063 829,063 83,206 82,906
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 28th
May, 2014 which was effective at the same day and will
expire on 28th May, 2024. The primary purpose of the
Scheme is to provide incentives to directors, eligible
employees and other qualified persons who in the
opinion of the board of directors has made or will make
contributions which are or may be beneficial to the Group
as a whole.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may,
subject to certain conditions, grant to any directors,
employees, suppliers, agents, customers, distributors,
business associates or partners, professionals or other
advisors of, or consultants or contractors to, any members
of the Group or any associated companies who in the
opinion of the board of directors has made or will make
contributions which are or may be beneficial to the Group
as a whole, options to subscribe for shares in the Company
at any price but not less than the higher of (i) nominal value
of a share, (ii) the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the day of grant, and (iii) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options, subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, (i)
the total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, and (ii) the number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time.

Options granted must be taken up within the time period
set out in the offer letter and upon payment of HK$1 for
each lot of share option granted.

2. LRI BEBLARZRS

ARABR_ZT—NFRA -+ /\BERH—
TERERREET S ZETEIR R B AR WigR
ZEZHFRAZt+NBEm-FEZE
ZEHMANESERAY RNEEERNZE
BIEH S EIEL BRI EEBR AR E
E LEREEREMAEERALHL TR
B o

BT S B TEREZREIT  RNAFE
ENNESERAHAEERBANEZIE
HRBELBNRSAIEEBREMZ ASLR
FRAKE AR EABMEARZES B
BHER - RE -BF HHME X5
BANEY BEREMEMER  EAA
SR R T AR A E AR REE A A AR
M2 BRE  HREERTESLRORGE
B (RORBZLEBAREBIF 2 mE
Ko (i) A 19 P B2 4 S AR A 4% B HA A 1 1 =2
SRRz FHRTEZREE M
BREOZERETREZRMDEE ZZ UL
NETE R EITRA Z210% &8

REXRRBBIRF LI E (VRE 87
REEROBREZAABRNER TSEH
AR BUEAAI B E B 1T AAD 210% » K (i)
FERMEAR @A HEARE R L R
BB 2 AR C BT RS RITRMD B
B THBEARRMEMAEED ETRND
il b e

BREARZXN RN ZHREART IR
BER YAREMARRREZBREST
XM1EBETZER -
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 20. LR BEBRBARZRS (&)

(Continued)

At 31st December, 2015, there were 11,900,000
outstanding shares in respect of which options had been
granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme
(2014: 12,900,000 outstanding share options). The
outstanding shares represent less than 2% of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date.

The following table discloses movement of the Company’s
share options held by employees and consultants (including
directors) during the years ended 31st December, 2015 and

R-_FE—AF+-_A=+—8 RE:t
EEREHEDABKRITE ZBREL R
11,900,000/ R 1T D (ZF — W5
12,900,000 ) ARITHE 2 BEARAE ) ~ M ARTT
F2BREMARRNZBDBITRG T
2% °

TRBEEHZ T HAFEE T —NOF
+-A=+—HALFERENER (B
BE)MEBEARFEREZEE):

2014
Exercise price  Outstanding at Exercised Outstanding at Exercised  Outstanding at
Name Date of grant Exercisable period per share 1.1.2014  during the year 31.12.2014  during the year 31.12.2015
RZB-IF R-ZB-1F
RZZ-RE t=A t=A
-A-H =t-A ==
%8 RiLA% G:d BROEE LESHd ERTR B FRTE LB
HK$ (Note ii) (Note ii)
BT Gk (B &Fiii)
Category I:
5K
- Directors 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 to 11.7.2018 0.255 14,000,000 (1,500,000) 12,500,000 (1,000,000) 11,500,000
-E2 -3-=% “E-ZE+ATZEE
tA+=H “2-N\FtAt+-H
Category :
FoR:
- Employees 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 to 11.7.2018 0.255 3,300,000 (3,200,000) 100,000 - 100,000
-E& -3-=% “E-ZEATZHEE
tA+=H “2-N\FtAt+-H
Category Il
FH:
- Consultants (Note i) 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 to 11.7.2018 0.255 300,000 - 300,000 - 300,000
— (i) —3-=% E-ZE+ATZHEE
i 5 = “2-N\ftA+-B
Total for all categories 17,600,000 (4,700,000) 12,900,000 (1,000,000) 11,900,000
ik
Exercisable at the end of the year 17,600,000 12,900,000 11,900,000

RERATE

Weighted average exercise price HK$0.255% L HK$0.255% 7  HK$0.2557 7  HK$0.255% 70  HK$0.255% 1T

MEFHIEE

Weighted average remaining contractual life
at the end of the year

RERZMEFHBTANS

4.53 years 3.53 years 2.53 years £
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Note:
() The Group granted share options to the consultants in return
for their provision of management consultancy services to the

Group.

(i) The weighted average share price at the date of options
exercised during the year was HK$0.49 (2014: HK$0.55).

WARRANTS

Balance at 1st January R—A—B2Z#&&#%
Initial recognition ia R
Exercise during the year FRTE

Balance at 31st December

On 15th July, 2014, an aggregate of 160,000,000 warrants
was fully placed and issued at the issue price of HK$0.01
per warrant. The subscription price of the warrants is
HK$0.5 per share and the subscription period is two
years starting from the date of issue. The proceeds of
approximately HK$1,600,000 raised by the placing will be
used by the Group as general working capital. Assuming
the full exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the
warrants, approximately HK$80,000,000 will be raised and
will be used by the Group as general working capital and
as funds for future development of the Group. As at 31st
December, 2015, 3,200,000 (2014: 1,200,000) warrants
have been excised and 156,800,000 (2014: 158,800,000)
warrants remain outstanding.

R+ A=+—B2Z#&#

20. LR BERNIR2ZRS (&)

W b :
() AEEETFEEZBBRE IEARSN
AR EIREIE S DR Z B

(i) FATEFEEREEAZNEFHIBRESR
04987 (ZZFE—MF :0.55%7T) °

. RRER
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER THET
1,588 -
- 1,600
(20) (12)
1,568 1,588

RZE—NFLA+HA BRETEE
MRREZBOOIVB TEHEEREITAHR
160,000,00017 3B I 1 78 o 7R HX 4 38 2 R
BEAERRMN0.SE T REHM AT
HERFABEMF -BEEE ZMERIE
491,600,000/ L& BIEAR S B — MR & &
B & o R R BIRETE P T 57 B A 45 BB AT
f# + # % % 4980,000,0007% 7t * £ #5 A 1
AEBE-—RLEEESRASERKER
mEE-R=F—HFE+=-_A=+—8"
3,200,000f7 ( == — U4 : 1,200,00017 )
R A% 5 B 17 {F & 156,800,00010 (==
—PY4F © 158,800,00017 ) 3R A% & 18 AR 1T
f#E o
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30. WARRANTS (Continued)

As disclosed in Note 3, Binomial Option Pricing Model is
used to measure the fair value of the warrants that are not
traded in an active market. However, in accordance with
HKFRS 13 and HKAS 39, the fair value of the warrants at
inception is normally the transaction price. If the transaction
price differs from the amount determined at inception using
a level 3 valuation technique, that difference is deferred and
not recognised in profit or loss and referred to as deferred
day-1 profit or loss. The table below reflects the activities
in deferred day-1 profit or loss for the unlisted warrants,
including the aggregate difference yet to be recognised
in profit or loss at the beginning and end of the reporting
period and a reconciliation of changes during the reporting

0. RIRERE (&)

WA ST E - AR ERA B
TEEMNEELHETRIZIMEZRRIE

NFE AT BZBREBYHERELE
A 1355 R BB SR E395 - RARE
BHAESEZATFTEBE AR ZER-
MEXZPERBINNABERSRAE=
REERNFEET2HE 2528 HE
BEERTSEFEESRERER THBAREL
BAREFSEE TRRMIE T RRE
BFHECHERRMSBENTREE B
FERTIERERRANRE AV RREE
AEHREBUARBREAANNEZ LR
EHETERZEEXNHEL2HK AR

period. Amounts deferred are recognised in profit or loss

e RLeHEeERaRER - EXHT
when pricing of equivalent products or the underlying Bl ELESERPERE -
parameters become observable. When the transaction is

closed out, the amounts deferred are released.

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Deferred day-1 losses arising HRTRABREZIMELEZ
from issue of warrants EELEEHERE
Balance at 1st January R—A—B2#& 22,971 -
Issue of warrants BITRREE - 33,476
Fair value change in warrants not W R E R RER 2R
recognised in profit or loss HEERNFEEE (22,579) (10,505)
Balance at 31st December RTZRA=+—Hz&&% 392 22,971

Fair value changes subsequent to initial recognition WA IRFERR A AERER B R¥XE
are not recognised in profit or loss to the extent of the Rz N TFTEEG TS RNIEBRER -
unrecognised loss on initial recognition.
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The fair value for the warrants at 31st December, 2015
and 2014 is level 3 recurring fair value measurement which
calculated by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The
inputs into the model are as follows:

Option pricing model used Fris MEAE EBER
Expected volatility (%) T8 5K & (%)
Expected life (Years) TERIFIR ()
Risk-free interest rate (%) 7 2 B 1) 2 (%)

Spot Price R(E

Expect dividend yield TEEIIR B &

The Binomial Option Pricing Model requires the input of
highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility of
share price. Therefore the changes in subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimates.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 31

The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

30. AIRER (&)

RREER —_E—RAFA T —NF+=
B=+—HBZ2AFE BEHA _BEAHE
FTERAHE Y E=REEANTHETSE-

W ARE 2 BURIAT -
2015 2014
Binomial option Binomial option
pricing model pricing model
—ERAE — A
EEER EEBRE
67.64 88.63
0.54 1.54
0.137 0.35
0.29 0.42
0 0

TEAHREERLEFRHABRAIEL

RR AR BIERERE  Eit THH
ERREAEAZL SR FEMTE
RERTE -

EEREER

TRANAFER L E DR EER
EEERAED

Revaluation of

mining right

arising from

acquisition

WS Bz

RIS

HK$’000

FET

At 1st January, 2014 R-ZE—mFE—HF—H 68,803
Exchange adjustments bE X, R (1,611)
At 31st December, 2014 N e g P =B = R B 67,192
Exchange adjustments bE 2 (3,225)

At 31st December, 2015 INEEl = r = B =Enr—E 63,967




s

China Fortune Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SmEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 EZ—F

31.

32.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$38,835,000 (2014:
HK$36,024,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

During the year, the Group made minimum lease payments
of approximately HK$3,363,000 (2014: HK$4,960,000)
under operating leases.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as
follows:

Within one year —FRA
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEFERF
(BREEEMT)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office properties, retail shops and
common areas in the mining site. Leases are negotiated
and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from one to six years
(2014: one to six years).

—HE+ZA=+—HLFE

1. EEBEEE (£F)

BEFBECEMERE BT NF—
A—BE UPEREBARMRIERE
2R EBBTENR - R ANEE TR

NESFBEWERFRSB SN2 EEE
B 2 % #938,835,000/8 7T ( =& — P04 :
36,024,000/8 7T ) 2 B B FsfE - B KA 82
RARARRBELIEREZFE WA ERES
W RANZEE R ERTIREER AR
o

32. REHEY

EEBEBRBA

FR AEERBELLEHRNSI N ZHIE
& 4 53,363,000 0 (— T — PO &
4,960,000/ 7)) °

RERPEE B AKEREA A HEHA
KM T AE BBz HEMRBZN
ZARREEESALENT :

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER THET

1,127 1,771

736 225

1,863 1,996
REMONTEAKRERETHAE

X TEERBSARMLREN ZHES -
HMORBEHR-—ERF(ZF—WEF:
—ERFI)ZFHEBREE -
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31st December, 2015 and 2014, the Group had no
contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31st December,
2015 and 2014 not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements were as below:—

Contracted, but not provided for

- leasehold improvements —MHE%E

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Under the rules of the Scheme, the employer and
its employees are required to make contributions to the
Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a fixed rate of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

33.

34.

BRI BERFHREE

35.

HREE

RZIE—RAFR-_ZE—NF+_A=+—
B ANEETETRHIABE-

BAREE
RZE—RFA_FT—NWNF+_A=+—

A RRERE M wRHRB A 2 RE
BAREIENT

The Group
rEH
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
1,624 1,720
BIKE R E

AEERMBERAEERREREERGIE
NEEETE ([FH8]]) -8 2 EERRH
AEH 2 ETRBAREEEDFTH R
BAEZRA BRERERBRBARAAE
TEZ L R A ET 85K - AR B BT 8 2 ME
—RERRBFEIEL R E MK -

AEBEPRZMBRRREH AT EK
FEBRZBERERRKBNTEIKE - %
EH B R RZARF &R ZBIE X[ Z%
BB EIHT - REEBRNRERES -
AEEYHZERBNE 2 E—RERE
e E K o

129
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36. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Amounts due to related parties

Mr. Lau 24

An associate — KBS N T

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel and
senior management

The remuneration of directors and other members of
the Group’s key management during the year was as

follows:
Short-term benefits EHEN
Post-employment benefits RINEAEF

During the year, there was one (2014: one) senior
management whose emolument was within the band
from nil to HK$1,000,000.

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management was determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

6. BEAT2HE

(a) BENBEALZHE

(b)

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
106 2,667

- 500

106 3,167

RHRREEM TR REARERE
%0

FTEEEANSRBREEEKEZH
B

FREERAEEEMEIZEEAR
ZHEmT:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
5,172 5,337
75 75
5,247 5,412

FRN B (ZFE—WEF:—4A)R
REBBREZMEERBEESR
1,000,000/ 7T °

EERAMFEEBEASZMEHE
MEEe@ZEREMALRRETEHE
BIRETE -
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37. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 37. ERABIR=-SE—HE+—=HA
POSITION AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2015 =+—HzZBERRE

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
Mo aE FHExT THET
Non-current Assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REE AR Z®RE 51,006 53,578
Current Assets REBEE
Other receivables E A UG HR X 288 287
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 12 13
300 300
Current Liabilities RBAE
Other payables H b T BR 3K 1,268 1,214
Warrants R 1,568 1,588
Amounts due to subsidiaries  JEfTF B A 7 FKIE 55,739 55,236
58,575 58,038
Net Current Liabilities REBAERE (58,275) (57,738)
Total Assets less Current HEERRBARS
Liabilities (7,269) (4,160)
Capital and Reserves EXR#E
Share capital % s 28 83,206 82,906
Reserves 1 38 (90,475) (87,066)
(7,269) (4,160)
On behalf of the Board REEFE
Mr. Lau Siu Ying Mr. Luo Xi Zhi
2/ NEEE BB 2RAE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

E EF
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38. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 38. " NEIHEE

Share  Contributed  Translation ~Share option ~Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
R EE EaEH BERE BREGRE ZitER ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TR TR TR TEL
(Note i) (Note i) (Note iii) (Note iv)
G (P 2Fii) (P i) (MisEiv)

At 1st January, 2014 R-E-WE-F—H 393,311 40,948 37,337 1,446 (557,829) (84,787
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (3,770) (3,770)

Exchange differences arisingon  EHREMELZEXEER
translation - - 270 - - 270

Issue of shares upon exercise of TR ERZTRG
share options 1,101 - - 872 - 729

Issue of shares upon exercise of  FTEFE LR RIEEE

unlisted warrants Bk 492 - - - - 492
At 31st December, 2014 RZE-mF

+ZA=t-H 394,904 40,948 37,607 1,074 (561,599) (87,066)

Loss for the year FEER - - - - (4,870) (4,870)

Exchange differences arisingon  RHREMELZERER
translation - - 486 - - 486

Issue of shares upon exercise of 117 {5 B iR Fs 347k 17

share options 238 - - (83) - 155
Issue of shares upon exercise of  FMT{E3E E T RRIEEE
unlisted warrants ikt 820 - - - = 820

At 31st December, 2015 R-Z-HF
+-A=+-H 395,962 40,048 38,093 991 (566,469) (90,475)
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38. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continuead)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(ii)

The share premium represents the amount subscribed for
share capital in excess of nominal value.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between
the consolidated shareholder’s funds of the subsidiaries at
the date on which they were acquired by the Company, and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation less the
amount applied to pay up the 1,000,000 nil paid shares at the
time of the group reorganisation.

The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising
on retranslating the Company’s financial statement into
presentation currency.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transaction in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

38. "D TFEME (E)

GEE

(i)

(ii

(ii)

(iv)

B AEERERACEBLEEABE LR
o

BERBHRABEMBRAREARARIKER
AZRERRESEARAREETHR
Bl U RS T BT AR (5 2 T B AR A 2R
& B E4AFFE1T1,000,000 8% 7 41 A% A %
DIRRZRIBME 2 Z5

BHERBRERAARRMBHRERENRER
BIERmEE W BB

BRERERESRLERRITEZER
BZAFE FHIENERA M B RERM TSN
MM RERNRZRZ 2 Gt B E—
bRy
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 9. FEMBATER

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which R-_E—RAFEN_ZE—NF+_A=+—
BZARABIEZEWB AR (BREFMKT
ZEBRARFEOT

are incorporated with limited liability, at 31st December,
2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

AL R

Express Fortune Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands

Express Fortune

vk

=34

Fortune Shanghai

RELE

Sifa Mining

BREEXR

Telefortune (China) Investments
Limited
RENM (FE)REBRAF

Eagles Fund Technology
Investment Limited

ZEESHBREBRAF

Zhuhai Reminda

KigERE

Note:

RRRAHE

Hong Kong

BA

Wholly foreign owned
enterprise established
in the PRC

TERERZ
NEBERE

Sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established in
the PRC

TERERZ
PHEERE

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
Sino-foreign equity joint

ventures established
in the PRC

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BT
RBRERE/
HEx

Ordinary US$100
LEBI100ET
Ordinary HK$10
Non-voting deferred
HK$5,000,000 (Note)
TmR10%E T
BEZREERR
5,000,0007% 7t (FizE)

US$28,100,000

28,100,000 7T

RMB1,000,000

AR #1,000,0007T

Ordinary
HK$40,000,000
LRk
40,000,000 7T
Ordinary HK$10,000
LB 1%10,000% T

RMB10,000,000

BRI PG ERE  AR%10,000,0007T

The deferred shares carry practically no rights to dividends

or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general

meeting of the respective company or to participate in any

distribution on winding up.

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

FRE M

EROTRAEE/

EMER LA

2015 2014
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
50.8% 50.8%
100% 100%
100% 100%

51% 51%

Principal activity

TEER

Investment holding

BB R

Maintaining the
corporate office

ERARBAE

Trading in mobile
phones

il
et

BUES

\

Exploration and
extraction of mining
resources

Investment holding

BB R

Investment holding
RERZR

Trading in mobile
phones

fist: BRERMERETHGEITRRARD
B2 B B B A B A RUE R K
EREHNHFERRAGINE LERE
HRBRE2ES K ZER
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The Company directly holds the interest in Express Fortune
Holdings Limited. All other interests shown above are
indirectly held by the Company.

The principal activities are carried out in the place of
incorporation/establishment except for Express Fortune
Holdings Limited which mainly carries out its business in
Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

9. TEMBLATER (&)

7K ) H ¥ #5 8 Express Fortune Holdings
Limited# # - M =X FIR 2 FT B Bt
HEREARFBERE-

B Express Fortune Holdings Limited=® £
EEBNEEBIN LREZXBHNT
A ST, BT Hh BE AR o

BB QRN FLRFNEM RIS EE
Al (B 75 8 75 o

ERMINEDEERREFEAEEER
HEEFELARBTIENBRAR -EF
AR BIHEMHBARZHBE<SAH
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40. PARTICULARS OF ASSOCIATES 40. BEE N A E R
Details of the Group’s associates at 31st December, 2015 R-E—RFER-_T—NF+_/=+—
and 2014 are as follows: B AEEBEARFBOT:
Place of Proportion of nominal
Form of business incorporation/ value of issued capital
Name of associate structure operation held by the Group Principal activities
XEERE
ERTRAHEE
BENRER EBERER AMARY/EE Y B TEER
2015 2014
Artchief Industries Limited  Incorporated Hong Kong 50% 50% Trading in electronic
products
BRELXERAR BRI Ava A% EEETEmM
LRREGEREERAE  Incorporated PRC 50% 50%  Trading in second-
hand mobile
phones
BRI Ava FE BE_FUHEF
Ever Trillion Investments Incorporated British Virgin Islands 42.86% - Investment holding
Limited
AR AL EERZHE REER
41. MATERIAL INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN M. BERRS THRENZEKRE
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR =
CONTRACTS
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance RAM B FEBMERRN AR ERKD Ik
in relation to the Company’s business to which the GEZARNAABEPITNFBEARAIES
Company was a party and in which a director of the REFHEEEAEDZ(EEBE)ZX
Company had a material interest, whether directly or S LT EHA L

indirectly, were entered into or subsisted during the financial
year.
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42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 42, FFEZHEI MR

Sifa Mining, a 50.8% owned subsidiary, and Zhuhai RNATHBS0.8% = < B A FIERERE
Reminda, a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company, have ENEAESI%ER B ATIREFEE
material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). Summarised ERAE RIS ([ IR 4
financial information in relation to the NCI of Sifa Mining 25|)  cBRIBEIEE NI E B EIEIT 4
and Zhuhai Reminda, before intra-group eliminations, are MRS ETEE R R F B 2 B

presented below: BRBMEZ250T -

Sifa Mining PR ERE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHET

For the year ended 31st December BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

Revenue & - _
Loss for the year FEEE (8,279) (8,264)
Total comprehensive income FHEBIA (16,202) (12,530)
Loss allocated to NCI DI EIETEH MRS 2 B8 (4,074) (4,066)
Dividends paid to NCI A FE 128 1l 14 2 S A 2 AR B - -

For the year ended 31st December BEZE+=-BA=1+—-HLEE

Cash flows used in operating activities KEEEFTABRSRE (6,367) (7,689)
Cash flows generated from BEFBFAEHRESRE

financing activities 3,631 7,540
Net cash outflows RemdFaE (2,736) (149)
As at 31st December INr=E = =8
Current assets mENEE 5,616 6,622
Non-current assets ERBEE 276,312 290,560
Current liabilities mBAaE (47,417) (58,000)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (78,721) (67,192)
Net assets BEFE 155,790 171,990

Accumulated non-controlling interests R AT Il 1 76,648 84,618
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42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 42, FEP 4IRS (£)
Zhuhai Reminda KEEEE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT

For the year ended 31st December BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

Revenue Yz 21,719 42,332
Loss for the year FEEAE (2,970) (3,750)
Total comprehensive income 2HERIKA (3,090) (3,929)
Loss allocated to NCI DI EIEEH S 2 B8 (1,455) (1,838)
Dividends paid to NCI A FF 128 1l 14 A 2 S AN 2 AR B - -

For the year ended 31st December BEZE+=-BA=1+—HLEE

Cash flows (used in)/generated from KEEE (FrA) /B

operating activities Ren= (421) 478
Cash flows used in investing activities REESFABRSRE - (552)
Net cash outflows e FR (421) (74)
As at 31st December A+=—B=+—H
Current assets mENE E 7,672 11,369
Non-current assets EMEEE 279 300
Current liabilities mBAaE (6,046) (6,673)
Net assets BEFE 1,905 4,996
Accumulated non-controlling interests R IEE S S 933 2,448

43. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 43. A A BHRE

STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and SEMKEHRREN_E—NFE=HA=1+H
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30th BEEoHE MR-

March, 2016.



RESULTS

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income, gains and losses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
available-for-sale investments

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
mining right

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
interest in an associate

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Reversal of impairment loss of trade and
other receivables

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax credit

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

eSS
HEKA

EH
HiplA ess B8
HE R AR
THER
SAHEERERAZAEER

SLRREMER M ERRE

FEBERZAERR
BRBERAERERL
HEER
SLIENCE 5 B K R E A PR R AR
BRZBEBR
HE—KME Rz Y
ERE SRR L EbRKER 2
HEBRAD
DEBERT KB

BEKA

BRSEHAEN,/ (BR)
FEmER

EEEN/ (BR)
fefh:

ARAFEBA
SRRl R

FEREZERER AR
T -hFEH
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MBME

Year ended 31st December,
BZE+t-A=t+-BLEE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTET FTET FTET TET THERT
1,765,862 623,049 198,344 57,587 157,903
(1,704,539)  (609,374)  (182,770) (49,027)  (152,509)
61,323 13,675 15,574 8,560 5,394
5,322 5,471 4,984 4,194 3,071
(14,885) (10,847) (10,839 (10,408) (6,592)
(31,823) (26,982) (25,728) (30,040) (18,231)
- - - - (6,234)
- (60,847)  (118,637) - -
(2,910) - - - -
- (857) - - -
- (3,321) (1,268) - (2,767)
2 - - - =
641 - - - -
5 (106) (604) (1,369) (1,986)
(6,535) (1,340) (1,323) (1,323) (1,302)
11,140 (85,154)  (137,841) (30,386) (28,647)
15 15,215 29,659 - -
11,155 (69,939)  (108,182) (30,386) (28,647)
15,922 (43,872) (59,831) (24,482) (23,118)
(4,767) (26,067) (48,351) (5,904) (5,529)
17,1685 (69,939)  (108,182) (30,386) (28,647)
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENREE

At 31st December,

R+=A=+-A
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TER

Total assets BEBE 742,748 585,271 441,708 402,354 354,834
Total liabilities BRER (263,265)  (171,702)  (123,017)  (119,416)  (111,880)

479,483 413,569 318,691 282,938 242,954

Equity attributable to owners of ARAREBAELER
the Company 314,780 273,806 223535 195872 165,373
Non-controlling interests EFarlig 164,703 139,763 95,156 87,066 77,581

479,483 413,569 318,691 282,938 242,954
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